
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

STUDY SESSION 
June19,2018 

6:00 p.m. 
32nd Session of the 10th Council 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life for 

its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

Call to order 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers from Meeting 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Special Meeting June 8, 2018 
2. Formal Meeting June 12, 2018 

Deputy Mayor Report or Departmental Head Report 

Public Comment 

Review Agenda Items for City Council Consideration 

3. Resolution to approve Neighborhood Empowerment Projects over $10,000, at a total cost of $113,228.00. 
4. Resolution to authorize Mayor and/or Deputy Mayor to enter into a contract with Data Strategy, LLC for the 

acquisition of a server and storage equipment in the amount of $64,500. 
5. The Pontiac City Council ordains that the City Ordinance entitled "Subdivision N. Demolition," be amended to 

"Article VII. Building, Demolition, Implosion and Moving." 
6. Resolution requesting the Pontiac City Council to schedule a public hearing on the Reprogramming of Community 

Development Block Grant Program Year 2016 funds $75,000 from Employment and Training to Public Services 
(General-Yard Services) on July 3, 2018. 

7. Resolution requesting that the Pontiac City Council approve the Planning Commission's recommendation for the 
Zoning Map Amendment ZMA 18-05 request for 339 S. Paddock Street, also known as PIN 64-14-33-179-001, to 
amend the current site zoning from R-1 One Family Dwelling District zoning to M-1 Light Manufacturing District . 

8. Resolution requesting that the Pontiac City Council approve the Planning Commission's recommendation for the 
Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 18-06) request for PIN 64-14-19-351-022, to amend the current zoning from MUD 
Mixed Use District zoning to M-1 Light Manufacturing District. 

9. Resolution requesting that the Pontiac City Council approve the Planning Commission's recommendation for the 
Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 18-03) request for 245 S. Paddock Street, also known as PIN 64-14-33-136-001, to 
amend the current zoning from R-2 Two Family and Terrance Dwelling District zoning to R-3 Multiple Family 
Dwelling District. 

10. Resolution requesting that the Pontiac City Council endorse and support both Senate Bill 469 and House Bill 5178 
and calls upon the Michigan Legislature to pass this important legislation and Governor Snyder to sign it, in order 
to stimulate appropriate development and redevelopment and protect the historic character and quality of life of our 
communities; and that a copy of this Resolution be forwarded to the Michigan Historic Preservation Network. 



Adjournment 



1 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council  

   30th Session of the Tenth Council 
 
A Special Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Friday, 
June 8, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. by President Kermit Williams.               
 
Call to Order at 2:02 p.m.  
 
Roll Call  
  
Members Present: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Waterman and Williams. 
Members Absent: Taylor-Burks and Woodward.  
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 
 
Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks arrived at 2:03 p.m. 
 
18-206  Excuse Councilperson Don Woodward for personal reasons. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Carter. 
 
  Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter  
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 

18-207  Amendment to the agenda to include resolution for a Lease Agreement (with 
purchase option) for 825 Golf Drive for the City’s Youth Recreation Program. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Miller. 

  Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 
 
18-208  Approval of the Agenda with a motion to include resolution to commit Fund 
Balance of the General Fund in the amount of $3.2 million for the purpose of the purchase of a 
Youth Recreation Center. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Carter. 
 
  Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 
 
Three individuals addressed the body during public comment. 
 
18-209  Resolution to approve a Lease Agreement (with purchase option) for 825 Golf 
Drive for the City’s Youth Recreation Program. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 
 
Whereas, the Mayor and Staff have been negotiating the lease at 825 Golf Drive for the exclusive 
purpose of Youth Recreation. 



2 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

Now, Therefore, the City Council authorizes the Mayor and designated staff to complete negotiations 
and execute the lease with option to purchase, with a base rate not to exceed $25,000 per month, for the 
property known as 825 Golf Drive, Pontiac, MI for the purpose of operating a Youth Recreation Center. 
 
  Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Miller and Taylor-Burks 
  No: Carter and Pietila 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
18-210  Resolution to commit Fund Balance of the General Fund in the amount of $3.2 
million for the purpose of the purchase of a Youth Recreation Center. Moved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 
 
Whereas, the Mayor and City Council desire to re-establish the City of Pontiac youth Recreation 
Program; and, 
Whereas, the purchase of a Youth Recreation Center will further this goal, 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the City Council direct the Finance Office to commit fund balance 
in the amount of $3.2 Million for the purpose of the purchase of a Youth Recreation Center. 
 
  Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, and Waterman 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
Council President calls for a recess at 2:49 p.m. Back in session at 2:51 p.m. 
 
18-211  Adoption of the General Appropriations Act: FY 2018-2019 Proposed Budget. 
Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 
 
Whereas, in accordance with Article VI, Section 2-535 of the City’s Ordinances entitled Budget 
Adoption, a public hearing was held on June 5, 2018 regarding the proposed budget and tax rate; and, 
Whereas, the City Council shall not amend the proposed appropriations ordinance or tax rate until after 
the public hearing; and, 
Whereas, by June 9, 2018 and no less than six days after the notice of public hearing shall adopt an 
appropriations ordinance, tax rate, and user fees. 
Now, Therefore, in accordance with the General Appropriations Act, the City Council of the City of 
Pontiac approves the FY 2018-2019 Proposed Budget as amended. 
 
 

BUDGET ORDINANCE #2354 
 
 
   
 
 
   

 
 
 
 



 
 

Public Safety Subcommittee minutes and reports for the June 2018 meeting are enclosed. As always in 
you have questions, all three department heads invite you to contact them. 
 
Present for this meeting was Council ProTem, Councilwoman Mary Pietila, From Star EMS Director Brian 
Long, Coordinator Chris Haney, and CEO Bill Grubb  
 
As the graduation of the inaugural graduation of the Star EMT was occurring on the same day as the 
Subcommittee meeting, it was decided by all subcommittee members; we would meet at the PLAT and 
attend the ceremony.  Of the 18 who took the final exam on Tuesday, nine Graduated on Friday. 
 
Further conversation from Director Brian Long: Thursday May 31, 2018, seven car seats given out. The RSVP 
program is being received well and has grown in the last year to 30 patients participating.  The monthly Star 
dispatch report is attached. 
 
Waterford Regional Fire Department report is enclosed.  Fire Chief’s made the trip to Ohio on Friday to check 
on the production of the Quint and Ladder Trucks that are in the production stage at this time.  There are 
ongoing inspections of the Tire storage at the local retail businesses.  
 
OCSD, all Major incidents are reported on the major incident emails.  Another unfortunate incident occurred on 
Thursday June 7th with the finding of a body in Osmun Lake, bringing the homicide count to 11, and arrests in 
all but 2, the latest on Thursday, and the one at NHF in January.  But again, and still when no one will talk, one 
is unable to gather the evidence to make the arrest.   
 
Credit is to be given to the young men who reported to their mother/aunt of the suspicious markings on the pier 
resulting in her calling the OCSD and reporting it, leading to the investigation and recovery. 
 
The graduation Ceremony went very nicely, Mr. Grubb from Star paying the costs of educational 
materials for those who graduated. 
 
A Group from all 3 departments, as well as Council ProTem   
Carter and Councilwoman Pietila attended Mayor’s address on Monday June 4, 2018. 
 
 
 
The meeting began at 10:00 a.m. and concluded at the end of the Graduation ceremony at 12:30 p.m. 
 
Minutes prepared by  
Councilwoman Pietila 



3 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 



4 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



5 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



6 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



7 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



8 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



9 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



1
0 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



1
1 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



1
2 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



1
3 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



1
4 

June 8, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
  Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
  No: None 
  Ordinance Passed. 
 
President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 2:55 p.m.  

 
 
 

______________________________ 
                                                                         SHEILA R. GRANDISON 
        ACTING CITY CLERK 



April 3, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1 

June 12, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council  

   31st Session of the Tenth Council 
 
A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
June 12, 2018 at 6:02 p.m. by President Pro-tem Randy Carter.               
 
Call to Order at 6:02 p.m.  
 
Invocation – Evangelist Veronica Taylor 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call  
  
Members Present: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Woodward. 
Members Absent: Williams.  
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 
 
18-212  Excuse Councilperson Kermit Williams for personal reasons. Moved by 
Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Waterman. 
 
  Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Woodward and Carter  
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 

18-213  Approval of the agenda with an amendment to remove item #3 (resolution to 
change Annette Wesley title to director of elections) from the agenda but not indefinitely.  Moved 
by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

  Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Woodward, Carter and Miller  
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 
 
Council President Kermit Williams arrived at 6:04 p.m. President Pro-Tem Carter turned the meeting 
over to the President. 
 
18-214  Journal of June 5, 2018. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Waterman. 
 
  Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 
 
18-215  Journal of June 6, 2018 Special Meeting. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Carter. 
 
  Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, and Taylor-Burks 
  No: None 



2 

June 12, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

  Motion Carried. 
 
Special Presentation – President Williams introduced monthly recognition for citizens and employees. 
 
Recognition of Elected Officials – Abdul El-Sayed Candidate for Governor 
 
18-216  Resolution for Lamba Rho Zeta Chapter of Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Inc. Moved by 
Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Waterman. 
 
WHEREAS,  It is the sense of this legislative body to pay proper tribute to an organization of 
remarkable character that has been dedicated to creating a legacy of success and that empowers the 
community; and, 
WHEREAS,  Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Incorporated was organized at Howard University on January 16, 
1920, by five Founders, Arizona Cleaver, Viola Tyler, Myrtle Tyler, Pear Neal and Fannie Pettie, who 
were encouraged by Charles Taylor and Langston Taylor, members of Phi Beta Sigma fraternity, to 
establish a sister organization that would later become, the only Greek-letter sister and brother 
organization sharing a joint constitution; and,  
WHEREAS, Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Incorporated  was the first to charter a chapter in Africa in 1948, 
to form an adult auxiliary group, the Amicae (Friends of Zeta) and to form youth auxiliary groups-the 
Amicettes, Archonettes and Pearlettes; and, 
WHEREAS, Zeta Phi Beta Sorority Incorporated’s objectives of Finer Womanhood, Sisterly Love, 
Scholarship and Service have brought women from all parts of the country together who share similar 
tastes, aspirations and a desire for a concerted action to bring results in removing impediments to the 
growth and progress of all humankind; and, 
WHEREAS, Lambda Rho Zeta Chapter of Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Incorporated was subsequently 
organized and chartered on November 19, 1982 through the leadership and unwavering efforts of five 
Zeta members of Pontiac, Michigan, Willie B. Aldridge, Dorothy F. King, Edna Metoyer, Yvonne M. 
Robinson and Brenda M. Street; and, 
WHEREAS, Lamda Rho Zeta Chapter of Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Incorporated officially joined the 
other graduate chapters of Michigan on January 22, 1983 at their chartering ceremony during the 
Michigan State Organization Founder’s Day celebration; and, 
WHEREAS, Lamda Rho Zeta Chapter of Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Incorporated has continued to grow 
and impact the community through its community service efforts; as the Chapter created the Stork’s Nest, 
which is part of a National Project designed to assist in providing indigent mothers with children’s clothes 
and health information; and, 
WHEREAS, Lamda Rho Zeta Chapter of Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Incorporated has received countless 
awards, including, First Place Awards at the State, Regional and National level for their participation in 
Z-HOPE (Zeta Helping Other People Excel) Projects, has participated in Health Initiative Workshops, 
and has championed many community service projects, which include, providing schools supplies and 
book bags to local elementary students and supplying hygiene kits to shelters, just to name a few: and,  
WHEREAS, The Pearls of Hope Foundation, Incorporated was organized in 2010, was granted 501 
c3 status in 2011 and is the catalyst in increasing efforts to seek funding for scholarships and other 
initiatives. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the members of the Pontiac City Council on behalf of 
the citizens of Pontiac, humbly and graciously honor the Lamda Rho Zeta Chapter of Zeta Phi Beta 
Sorority, Incorporated, for their service and commitment to enriching the lives of the people in the 
community.  
 
   



3 

June 12, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

Ayes: Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
18-217  Resolution for family of the Year Mr. and Mrs. Lyons. Moved by Councilperson 
Woodward and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 
 
WHEREAS,  It is the sense of this legislative body to honor an outstanding couple of remarkable 
character, who are inspirational and who empower the community; and, 
WHEREAS,  Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Inc., Lambda Rho Zeta Chapter, in partnership with the Pearls of 
Hope Foundation celebrates the 35th Annual Finer Womanhood Scholarship Luncheon; and, 
WHEREAS,  this year, recognition is bestowed upon “Family of the Year,” Mr. and Mrs. Lyons; and, 
WHEREAS,  Mr. and Mrs. Lyons are the proud parents of seven children; and, 
WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Lyons after completing a successful journey of raising their seven children, 
discovered that their “parenting journey” was not over, but instead, was just the beginning of something 
special; and, 
WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Lyons recognized the desires of foster children, to love and be loved, to 
have stability, a safe home and parents they can trust; and, 
WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Lyons’ innate awareness of their exceptional qualities of compassion, love, 
understanding, dedication and commitment, compelled them to become foster parents and to ultimately 
adopt their first foster child, Jada; and,  
WHEREAS,  Mr. and Mrs. Lyons are truly exceptional “parents” and were recognized in April, 2017 
by Commissioners Taub, Quarles and the Honorable Judge Joan Young at the Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners and were honored as “Oakland County Foster Parent of the Year,” by the non-profit 
organization, CARE House in 2017; and, 
WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Lyons serve as an example others, to parent a child does not require the 
same DNA; to be a foster parent gives hope, provides for a better tomorrow and creates endless 
possibilities.  
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council, and members of this great 
community, honor and salute Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Inc.’s, 2018 “Family of the Year,” Mr. and Mrs. 
Lyons.  Congratulations.  
 
  Ayes: Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
18-218  Resolution for Woman of the Year Dr. Anissa Rochelle Mattison. Moved by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Miller. 
 
WHEREAS,  It is the sense of this legislative body to pay proper tribute to individuals of great 
character and whose lives have been dedicated to uplifting, inspiring and empowering the community; 
and 
WHEREAS,  Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Inc., Lambda Rho Zeta Chapter, in partnership with the Pearls of 
Hope Foundation celebrates the 35th Annual Finer Womanhood Scholarship Luncheon; and, 
WHEREAS,  this year, recognition is bestowed upon “Woman of the Year,” Dr. Anissa Rochelle 
Mattison; and, 
WHEREAS, Dr. Anissa Rochelle Mattison received her Bachelor of Science degree in Biology from 
Dillard University in New Orleans, LA., completed her medical degree at Michigan State University 



4 

June 12, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

College of Osteopathic Medicine and interned at Garden Hospital before joining St. Joseph Mercy for 
her residency which she completed in 2005; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Anissa Rochelle Mattison has distinguished herself in her profession by here 
sincere dedication and substantial contribution to the welfare of this community, as she is a board-
certified Obstetrics & Gynecology physician who practices medicine in Pontiac at St. Joseph Mercy 
Hospital; and, 
WHEREAS, Dr. Anissa Rochelle Mattison is currently the program director for the Obstetrics & 
Gynecology Residency Program and serves on the Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical 
Education; and, 
WHEREAS,  Dr. Anissa Rochelle Mattison recognizes that the love of family is one of life’s greatest 
blessings and therefore, enjoys spending time with her husband Warren and their three children; and, 
WHEREAS, Dr. Anissa Rochelle Mattison has been actively involved in assisting Lambda Rho Zeta 
in establishing the Storks Nest and continues to be an intricate volunteer. 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the members of the Pontiac City Council and members of 
this great community honor and salute Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, Inc.’s, 2018 “Woman of the Year,” Dr. 
Anissa Rochelle Mattison, for her exemplary contributions of leadership, selflessness and commitment 
to our community 
   

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
18-219  Resolution to authorize the Mayor to sign contract with Great Lakes Contracting 
for the resurfacing of hill Street. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson 
Pietila. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac has advertised and received responses to a request for proposal for 
the Hill Street Resurfacing Project on May 24, 2018 and publically opened bids, and; 
WHEREAS, A bid tabulation was prepared and reviewed, and; 
WHEREAS, the City identified the low bidder as Great Lakes Contracting. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor to enter 
into a contract with Great Lakes Contracting for $554,325.80 for the Hill Street Resurfacing Project. 
 
  Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
  
18-220  Resolution to authorize the Mayor to sign contract with Great Lakes Contracting 
for the 2018 Roadway Maintenance Program. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has advertised and received one response to a request for proposal for 
the 2018 Roadway Maintenance Program on May 24, 2018 and publically opened bids, and; 
WHEREAS, a bid tabulation was prepared and reviewed and compared with MDOT Average Unit 
Prices for our region, and; 
WHEREAS, the City identified the low bidder as Great Lakes Contracting. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor to enter 
into a contract with Great Lakes Contracting for the 2018 Roadway Maintenance Program.  



5 

June 12, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

 
18-221  Resolution to authorize Mayor and/or Deputy Mayor to enter into a contract with 
PCM Sales, Inc. for Information Technology Services in the yearly amount of $309,000.00 for a 
three-year extension (July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021) with an option for a two-year extension. 
Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Pietila. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac negotiated a contract extension for Information Technology Services; 
and, 
WHEREAS, an addendum was prepared by PCM Sales, Inc. and reviewed by the Purchasing Agent of 
the City, and; 
WHEREAS,  the extension of this service contract from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021 with the option 
to extend for two more years to June 30, 2023 is being recommended for the signing, and; 
WHEREAS, the contract will remain with PCM Sales, Inc. The annual fee per fiscal year is 
$309,000.00 for all work performed, by the contractor, under this agreement; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council authorize the Mayor or 
Deputy Mayor to enter into a contract with; PCM Sales, Inc. for Information Technology in the yearly 
amount of $309,000.00 for a three-year extension (July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021) with an option for a 
two-year extension. 
 
  Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
18-222  Resolution to authorize the Mayor and/or Deputy to enter into a contract with 
Nichol’s Heating and Cooling, Inc. for HVAC Replacement at the Robert Bowen Senior Center in 
the amount of $21,250 as budgeted under FY 2016 CBDG funds. Moved by Councilperson Pietila 
and second by Councilperson Waterman. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac advertised and received responses to a request for bids for HVAC 
Replacement of Robert Bowen Senior Center on May 14, 2018 and publically opened bids; and, 
WHEREAS, a bid tabulation was prepared and reviewed by the Purchasing Agent of the City, and, 
WHEREAS, the most responsible and qualified bidder is being recommended for the contract; and, 
WHEREAS, the contract will be granted to Nichol’s Heating and Cooling, Inc. The amount of 
$21,250.00 is the total bid for all work performed, by the contractor, under this agreement and will be 
funded by CDBG dollars; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council authorize the Mayor or 
Deputy to enter into a contract with; Nichol’s Heating and Cooling, Inc. for HVAC Replacement for 
Robert Bowen Senior Center in the amount of $21,250.00 as budgeted with CDBG funds. 
 
  Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter and Miller 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed.  
 
18-223  Defer for one week the resolution to approve Neighborhood Empowerment 
Projects (NEP) over 10,000, at a total cost of $113,228.00. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 



6 

June 12, 2018 
 
 

 
 

 

  Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Woodward and Miller 
  No: Carter and Pietila 
  Abstain: Waterman 
  Motion Carried. 
 
Twelve (12) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 
 
Councilwoman Patrice Waterman left meeting at 7:40 p.m. 
 
Honorable Mayor Waterman reported. 
 
City Attorney, Acting Clerk Sheila Grandison, Councilwoman Gloria Miller, Councilman Don 
Woodward, Councilwoman Mary Pietila, Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks, President Pro-Tem 
Randy Carter and President Kermit Williams made closing comments. 
 
President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 8:03 p.m.  

 
 
 

______________________________ 
                                                                         SHEILA R. GRANDISON 
        ACTING CITY CLERK 



April 3, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 
 
 
 
 
 

 



WATERFORD  REGIONAL  

FIRE  DEPARTMENT       
2495 Crescent Lake Road  •  Waterford, MI  48329 

Phone:  248.673.0405  •  Fax:  248.674.4095 
www.waterfordmi.gov 

John H. Lyman, Fire Chief • Matthew J. Covey, Deputy Fire Chief • Carl J. Wallace, Fire Marshal 

 
 MONTHLY FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT  

For the City of Pontiac 

May 2018 

Total calls - month:  445    Fires:   21  EMS:  229 Other:  195 

Total calls - YTD:  1,882 Fires:  115 EMS:  1,065 Other:  702 

Month  Count  Response Times  YTD Count  Response Times  

FS-6   Fires –  4  7.42    31   6.09 

EMS –  54  6.12    216   5.33 

FS-7:   Fires –  12  5.42    53   5.39  

EMS –  84  5.08    435   5.11 

FS-8: Fires –  3  3.44    10   4.18 

EMS –  50  5.17    232   5.18 

FS-9: Fires –  2  3.55    21   4.27 

 EMS –  41  4.45    182   4.29 

 
Fire Injuries to personnel:  0  Fire Injuries to civilian:  0 

 
 

Notable events/incidents for month: 
New Ambulance arrival at the end of the month.   

Equipment being installed and truck graphics scheduled for June. 
 
Concrete for Station #4 contract signed and planned for June. 
 
 



WATERFORD  REGIONAL  

FIRE  DEPARTMENT       
2495 Crescent Lake Road  •  Waterford, MI  48329 

Phone:  248.673.0405  •  Fax:  248.674.4095 
www.waterfordmi.gov 

John H. Lyman, Fire Chief • Matthew J. Covey, Deputy Fire Chief • Carl J. Wallace, Fire Marshal 

 
 MONTHLY FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT  

For the City of Pontiac 

May 2018 

Total calls - month:  445    Fires:   21  EMS:  229 Other:  195 

Total calls - YTD:  1,882 Fires:  115 EMS:  1,065 Other:  702 

Month  Count  Response Times  YTD Count  Response Times  

FS-6   Fires –  4  7.42    31   6.09 

EMS –  54  6.12    216   5.33 

FS-7:   Fires –  12  5.42    53   5.39  

EMS –  84  5.08    435   5.11 

FS-8: Fires –  3  3.44    10   4.18 

EMS –  50  5.17    232   5.18 

FS-9: Fires –  2  3.55    21   4.27 

 EMS –  41  4.45    182   4.29 

 
Fire Injuries to personnel:  0  Fire Injuries to civilian:  0 

 
 

Notable events/incidents for month: 
New Ambulance arrival at the end of the month.   

Equipment being installed and truck graphics scheduled for June. 
 
Concrete for Station #4 contract signed and planned for June. 
 
 



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS SUB-COMMITTEE NOTES 

June 13, 2018 

In attendance: 
Council members: Chairperson Doris Taylor- Burks, Don Woodward and Kermit Williams 
Mayor: Deirdre Waterman 
Deputy Mayor: Jane Bais-Disessa 
D PW Director: John Balint 

Start time: 4:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 

I. Road Projects 

A. Orchard Lake 
• The project should be complete by the middle of next week and the contractor did a great 
job. 

B. J osylyn Road 
• Is a large job and should be completed by the middle of September. 
• New LED lights on Joslyn. 

C. Hill St. 
• The contract should be signed and received from the contractor next week and will start in 
a couple of weeks. Storm sewers will cause delay. 
• Traffic will be re-routed, one-way traffic, South to North. 
• The project should be complete before school starts. 

II. Yellow Flashing Lights 
• The traffic signals that were scheduled to go away, should be gone and the ones that are still 
there will be re-built. 
•There will be a rapid, flashing beacon at GM and nothing over head, only on the sides. 
• Perry and Joslyn. 
•Nothing at Kennett or Madison. 
• Traffic signal optimization is the goal. 

III. Parks & Ordinances 
A. Oakland Park 
• There is a water leak at the park as the play structure was built in 2008 and last year there 
was a side walk built around the play scape and now there is water leaking North to South and 
the water has no where to go. 
• Developing or designing a solution to put in drains at the end of the structure. 

B. Charlie Harrison Park 
• There was a request to see if trees need to be cut. 

1 



C. Shirley & Willard Park 
• The park was trashed last night and needs to be cleaned. 

D. Noise & Park Ordinances 
• Both ordinances to be reviewed to see if amendments or changes need to be made to allow 
for enforcement at the parks. 

IV. 67 Chippewa Road 
• There may be a sewer issue there, it has to be confirmed by WRC. 
• WRC has to replace 100 feet of sanitary sewer, so that could be the issue. 

V. Edith St. between Auburn and Elm 
• There are four or five major pot holes. 
• Also, on Osmun and Edith, there was a demo was done there years ago and a fence line was 
left and there is now over growth on the fence which may cause an obstruction to a driver's 
view and a car might just dart out and cause an accident. 

VI. Upcoming Issues 
• *Nothing from DPW in the next two weeks other than a MDOT resolution and a discussion 
regarding a WRC rate increase of 3% and no more than $25 a year. 

Adjourned: 5:00 p.m. 

2 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable Council President Waterman, Pro Tern Pietila, and City Council 
Members 

FROM: Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

DATE: May31,2018 

CC: Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor; John Balint, DPW Director; Deputy 
Director for Community Development and Dwayne Lyons, Community 
Relations · 

Subject: Recommended 2018 Neighborhood Empowerment Projects over $10,000. 

The 2018 Neighborhood Empowerment Project was developed in accordance with the 
City's "Moving Pontiac Forward" plan, which states: "... grassroots neighborhood 
planning has been instrumental to reversing the trends of cities facing disinvestment", and 
through citizen involvement, "if cultivated, offers a strong mechanism for citizen 
engagement in City planning and decision-making processes, which is at the heart of any 
recovery effort." 

I am pleased to report that the City of Pontiac received thirty-one (31) applications for the 
2018 Neighborhood Empowerment projects. 

As stipulated in the NEP Application, any project over $10,000 must adhere to the City's 
Purchasing Policy. After much review and discussion by members of the Executive Staff 
assigned to evaluate the 2018 Neighborhood Empowerment Project (NEP) applications, 
five (5) proposals exceeded the $10,000 level and are recommended for your 
consideration. 

Attached is a summary table that lists the five proposals recommended. Also, for your 
information, a copy of their NEP applications are also attached. 

Upon approval of these projects by the City Council, the remaining approved NEP projects 
under the $10,000 level will be announced. 

In closing, I would like to express my appreciation to all NEP applicants for their time and 
effort in the development of a proposal for the 2018 Neighborhood Empowerment Project. 

It is respectfully recommended that the City Council consider the attached resolution. 

Let me know if any questions arise. 

JBD 

Attachments 



Whereas, The 2018 Neighborhood Empowerment Program (NEP) was developed in accordance 
with the City, Pontiac Moving Forward Plan, which stresses the inclusion of civic involvement; 
and 

Whereas, applications were made available to community organizations and non-profit 
organizations, and 

Whereas, the City received a total of 31 projects and five (5) are over ten thousand $10,000 and 
require City Council approval and, 

Whereas, the following projects require city council approval: 

Project 2: 

Project 3: 

Project 7: 

Project 12: 

Project 13: 

Friends of Pontic Park/ Argyle Park (District 1): Installation of a playscape, bench 

and table at a total cost of$16,072.00; and 

Friends of Pontiac Park/ Beaudette Park (District 1): Upgrade the park by adding 
three tire swing sets and a climbing structure at a total cost of $32,111.00, and 

Project Pontiac/Mattie McKinney Hatchett Park (District 1): Upgrade the Park by 
removal of the current play structures and installation of a new play structure at a 
total cost of $28.055.00, and 

We Care Neighborhood Association/Oakland Park (District 6): Restoration of the 

basketball court at a total cost of $23,000.00 and 

We Care Neighborhood Association/Charlie Harrison Park (District 6): Restoration 
of the basketball court at a total cost of $13,990.00. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Pontiac City Council approves the above mentioned 
projects at total cost of $113,228.00. 



Memorandum 

To: Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

From: Michelle L. McKenzie, Purchasing Agent 

Through: Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

Date: June 14, 2018 

Re: 2018 Server and Storage Bid 

The City advertised for Server and Storage Bids. The proposals were accepted on June 4, 2018 at 2:00 pm in the office of the City 

Clerk and publically opened at that time. 

The City received six (6) bid proposals. The three (3) responsive, qualified bids for the 2018 Server and Storage were: 

• Data Strategy, LLC 

• Ultralevel 

• NetSolutions 

$ 64,500.00 

$ 101,201.45 

$ 283,581.80 

Bids were tabulated and checked. The Purchasing Agent and the City of Pontiac IT Department reviewed the bids. Three (3) of the 

Six (6) did not meet the requirements of the RFP. The City IT Department is an HP Information Technology shop. Meaning most of 

the Core Infrastructure equipment is HP. It operates that way due to the ease and configurability. Thusly, in our bid, we asked for 

HP equipment. 

Based on the review, the lowest qualified bidder is Data Strategy, LLC. The bid amount is$ 64,500.00. The City of Pontiac has the 

necessary funds allocated in the budget. 

As such, based upon the above and attached information it is the recommendation of the Purchasing Agent that the City authorizes 

the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to enter into a contract with the above-mentioned vendor Data Strategy, LLC: 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac advertised and received responses to a request for bids for Server and Storage equipment on June 4, 2018 

and publically opened bids; and, 

WHEREAS, a bid tabulation was prepared and reviewed by the Purchasing Agent and IT Department of the City, and, 

WHEREAS, the most responsible and qualified bidder is being recommended for the contract; and, 

WHEREAS, the contract will be granted to Data Strategy, LLC. The amount of$ 64,500.00 is the total bid for all equipment and work 

performed, by the contractor, under this agreement and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council authorize the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to enter into a contract with; 

Data Strategy, LLC for Server and Storage equipment in the amount of$ 64,500.00 as budgeted. 



REFERRAL/RECOMMENDATION FORM 

DATE: June 14 2018 

TO: __ ___:;_;Ja""'"n"-"e'-'B=-=a=is'--=-D=iS--=-e=ss"""'a"--, =-D-=ep"-u"'"'t'"""y....:..M=a=y'-"o"'--r ______ _ 

FROM: ---'-'M'-'-'i=chc.:.;e=l;..=I e'-'L::.:... -'-'-M.:...:c:..:..K=e.:..:.nz=i-=-e ''-'P-=u::..:...r=ch..:..;:a=s..:..:..in=g'-'-A...:.Cg=e=n-=--t ___ _ 

THE ATTACHED DOCUMENTS ARE BEING REFERRED FOR THE FOLLOWING REASONS: 

_ City Council _lL Bid Approval __ Budget Approval __ Cancelled other 

Bid Analysis and Recommendation for ________________ _ 

You Recommendations of a bidder are to be located in the space provided in the 11Remarks11 

section on the next page of this form. Do not submit your recommendation on any other. 

RFP: _ _,2=0=-=1=-=8-=S=-=e"'--rv.:....:e::.:..r-=a=n""'d--=S--=-to=r...aca ...... ge"'----------------

REMARKS: After a competitive process and a public bid opening, it is recommended 

that Data Strategy be awarded the 2018 Server and Storage bid. 

Your recommendation is to be based on the bid specification and content of bid. If the lowest 
bidder or bidders do not meet the specifications then list the major deviations for each. 

Rejections must be based on actual exceptions to specifications, or on other details included 
in the bid documents. 

Legal questions or concerns should be included in the analysis. If necessary, the Purchasing 
Division may request a legal opinion. 

Recommendations for bids over $10,000.00 must be approved by the Finance Director, the 
Purchasing Agent or an approved person as noted on the "City of Pontiac Authorized Signature 
Record." 

1 



Results 

1 of 1 

https://www.lara.michigan.gov/colaLicVerify/contro11( 

MICHIGAN,COV 
Mh:h!gM's 
OHkiol 
Web Site 

Bureau of Professional Licensing/ Corporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing Bureau 

VERIFY A LICENSE/REGISTRATION 

Name DBA Name License Type 

There were no records found matching the search criteria 

License Nbr Address Status Enforcement 
Action 

Attention Mobile Device Users: Not all mobile devices are compatible with all functions of 
this website. 

DISCLAIMER 

Licensing and registration records are made available at this site by LARA to provide Immediate access to information 
for the convenience of Interested persons. While LARA has taken steps to update this information dally, we make no 
guarantee as to the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or current status of the Information. LARA assumes no 
responsibility for any errors or omissions, or for the use of Information obtained from this site. 

Michigan.gov Home License Verification Home I Contact BPL I Contact CS&CL I LARA Home I State Websites 
Accessibility Policy I Link Policy I Security Policy 

Copyright © 2005-2018 State of Michigan 

6/13/2018, 4:43 PJ\ 



View Details - Entity Overview I System for Award Management https ://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/?navigationalstate=JBPNS _ rO0. 

1 of 1 

Username Password 
Login 

Forgot Usemame? Forgot Password? Create an Account 

ALERT• June 11, 2018: Entitles "'9isterlng In SAM must submit a notarized letter appointing their authorized Entity Administrator, Read our~ to learn more about changes to the 
notarized lett« review process and othe- system Improvements coming In June. 

Entity 
Dashbaattt1

ew 
, Entity Registration 

, Core Data 

> POCs 

, Exclusions 

, Active Exclusions 

, Inactive Exclusions 

, Excluded Family 
Members 

. ' 'fii;ni\{kfrisiiXiif i( 

IBM vl.P,13,20180427·1347 

WWW7 

Data Strategy, LLC 

DUNS1 965432920 CAGE Code: 66l82 

Status: Expired 

Expiration Date, 06/06/2018 

Purpose of Registration: All Awards 

Entity Overview 

Entity Reglstratlon Summary 

Name: Data Strategy, LLC 
Business Type: Business or Organization 

last Updated By: Amy Kensington 
Registration Status: Expired 
Activation Date, 06/06/2017 

Expired On: ~6/06/2018 

Exclusion Summary 

Active Exclusion Records? No 

Search Records 
Data Access 
Check Status 
About 
Help 

5555 CORPORATE EXOIANGE CT SE 

Grand Rapids, MI, 49512·5503, 

UNITED STATES 

Disclaimers 
Accessibility 
Privacy Polley 

FAPIIS,gov 
GSA,gov/lAE 
GSA.gov 
USA.gov 

Thi; I; a U,S, General SeJvtes Admhttratbo Federal Government computer system th.lt I; "FOROFFIOAL USE ONLY." Thi; system I; stl>ject to montomg, Indl/lJoat found 
pe,loonhg unauthorized actlllks are subject to dtcphary actbn hclldhg atnhill proserutbo, 

6/13/2018, 4:46 P:tl 



Record Details I Cascade Township j BS&A Online https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=Assessing&SearchCateg ... 

~r 
~ 
--::::::_ \ 
N _2 

5555 CORPORATE EXCHANGE CT SE GRAND RAPIDS, Ml 49512 (Property Address) 

Paree/ Number.41-50-18-024-575 *'Personal Property 

No Images Found 

Ovmer and Taxpayer Information 

Owner 

Property Owner. DATA STRATEGY 
Summary information 
> Assessed Value; $566,000 j Taxable Value: $566,000 

DATA STRATEGY 
5555 CORPORATE EXCHANGE CT SE 
GRAND RAPIDS, Ml 49512 

Taxpayer 

Ge:ieral Information for Tax Year 2018 

SEE OWNER INFORMATION 

~ope,:tY_Qass ---··--··--·-·· Co1111T1er~i~l-~~~<?Q?I__ Unit ____ 18CASCADE 
~c.J,~o:>11:>istrict__ __ _____ CALEDOt:J[A_ .. ____ _ .... Asse~e_~_\f~!u~----- . _ ...... m.~,9_00 ______ _ 
MA.!'.# ..... _ _ ______________ _ NoJ?a_tato. D_~pf.E,y_ . __ _____ ....... Taxab!e Val.ue _ _ ... $5~§,,.co~oo~----
t,J~_!~ .NUMBER IDX o______ . ___ _s~e..§g',la_lj:,:e_q_\falue__ $566,000 
Y~~R Alf'f:U\_°! _ ___________ Not Avc,flc,~_le______________ IJate__of (,as1: "!a111."_9'a119."______ 02/05@9_1_8 _____ _ 
USERALPHA3 Not Available Notes NotAvai/able 
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available 
USER ALPHA 2 Not Available Exem!)tion No Data to Display 

Principal Residence Exemption Information 

Homestead Date 

MBT Commercial 

2018 

2017 

Land Information 

Zoning Code 

No Data to Display 

No Data to Display 

I 

Total Acres 0.000 

June 1st l 
100.0000 % 

100.0000% 

Final 

100.0000 % 



£.in ,o (}.'"eflcw Monu 

,Bcmo·l"t::fr•m Todbar 
_,.- ...... 

: f-) ·• <: 1at 
~~--------' -·- .................. ---• • -- -······· ····:t~.-·: 

(!) lie ht!p$1/.f,:J"1.1~w,google.com/rnaps/pl-a-se/Darn-S·I,.:(~ Menu Bar 

SAVE NEARSY SEl~D TO YOUR 
PHON£ 

SHARE 

9 

~ 

\.. 

0 

5555 Corporate Exchange Ct SE, Grand Rapids. MI 
-49512 

data-strategy.com 

(616) 281-5566 

Open now: BAM-SPM v 

SUGGEST AN l:D!T 

9 Addapfroto 

~ . ::> Review summary 

~: 
3 

-11~~~ 
' I .. 

11 j 

4. / 
2 l -,',;inlr11n 

I 

]!ookmarks Toolbar 

L .. ······ -.. ------·-····· . ··- . . ··-·-··-···------- -- . . .... 
f.?.~~~-·~?_1 :-:-./-darn::: !3m 1: 1 e314rn 13! 1 m7~3m~_; 1 s_?:~881 ~,:73d2756a37:Cr,-:r3tb65~913>:22043!2s.555S.-'" ••• ~ * j (~ Si:.;ccJ-, 



SBA- SBA Profile http://dsbs.sba.gov/dsbs/search/dsp_profile.cfm?RequestTimeout=. 

1 of2 

This profile was last updated: 
Status: 

User ID: 
Name of Firm: 
Trade Name ("Doing Business As .. ,"): 
DUNS Number: 
Parent DUNS Number: 
Address, line 1: 
Address, line 2: 
City:· 
State: 
Zip: 
Phone Number: 
Fax Number: 
E-mail Address: 
WWW Page: 
E-commerce Website: 
Contact Person: 
County Code (3 digit): 
Congressional District: 
Metropolitan Statistical Area: 
CAGE Code: 
Year Established: 
Accepts Government Credit Card?: 
GSA Advantage Contract(s): 

> Acc::es:slblllly Options > 

Privacy Statement 
{Back to Profile List, or use Back button) 

06/04/2018 
Expired 

P1361627 
Data Strategy, LLC 

965432920 
965432920 
5555 CORPORATE EXCHANGE CT SE 

Grand Rapids 
MI 
49512·5503 
616·281·5640 
616·656·2029 
dana.jacks@data-strategy.com 
HTTP://WWW.DATA·STRATEGY.COM 

Dana Jacks 
081 
03 
3000 
66)82 
2006 
[X) Yes [ J No 

(Note: Size Information Is now under "NAICS Codes with Size Determinations by NAICS", below.) 

Legal Structure: 
Ownership and Self-Certifications: 

Current Principals 

(none given) 

LLC 

"Business Development Servicing Office" (for certifications) 

MICHIGAN DISTRICT OFFICE {SBA office code 0515) 

B(a) Certification: 

SBA 8(a) Case Number: 
SBA 8(a) Entrance Date: 
SBA B{a) Exit Date: 

Small Disadvantaged Business Certification: 

SDB Entrance Date: 
SOB Exit Date: 

HUBZone Certification: 

HUBZone Certified?: [ J Yes [X) No 
H-UBZone Certification Date: 

B(a) Joint Venture Certification: 

6/13/2018. 4:50 P1' 



Vendor Details I BidNet Direct 

Vendor Details 

Data Strategy, LLC 

5555 Corporate Exchange Ct 
Grand Rapids, Michigan, 49512 
United States 

Organization Number 

852540 

County/Region 

Kent County 

Registration date 

01/29/2018 

Phone 

616-464-7102 

Email 

moudendyk@data-strategy.com 

• Qrg 
• Working Categories 
• Contacts 
• Bids 
• History 
• Downloads 
• Notifications 

Registration Information 

Business Structure 

• LLC orLLP 

Business Type 

• Small 

Owner Ethnicity 

• Caucasian 

Number of Employees 

251 to 1000 

Established Since 

2004 

W-9 

https://www.bidnetdirect.com/private/buyer/vendors/ details/3 7293 541 

M11N 
6/13/2018, 4:54 P1' 



Home - Data Strategy http://www.data-strategy.com/ 

~ 
. "\ (\) 

~tr l'-1 (/) --cr-1 

and m.:ilntatnyour (http://www.data-strategy.com/services/) 
IT department, 

lncludin9A 
24x7x365 NOC. 

FROM OUR NEWS FEED 

No Hassle Back Up & Disaster R&eovery 

Disaster Recovery-what a morbid topic! 

Planning for a failure{ For any of u:. who've been 
around long enough, we KNOW we need ta have 
a plan ln case things go south. And "south" can 
mean a lot of things - hacker attack. natural 
disaster, power outage, or worse. The real trick is 
identifying ••• 

(http://www.data--stratogy.com/2017/10/30/no
hassle-baclc-d"i:.aster-rocovery/) 

~ WE'RE HIRING! 

Do you like working in a fast-paced 
organization with opportunity for growth? 
Check out our open positions... Don't see 
something that fits? Drop us a line anyway
wo•ve been known to make room for talented 
individuals! (http://data-strategy.com/c:areers 
/open-positions/) 

Home-
lhttp;/www.d,t,,-
strategy.com/) 

Curaon;. 

{http;/www.dam-
Grand Rapids (HQ): 616..281.5566 

Atlar'\ta: 770.392..3448 

Solutions 
(http://www.data-
:rtrategy.com 
/:.clutions/} 

Services 
(http://www.dam-
strotegy.com 
/services.I) 

Partners 
{http://www.data-
strategy.com 
/partners/) 

NOW$ Feed 

(http://www.data-
strategy.com 
/nows-food/) 

Resourc:c:!1 

(http://www.data-
strategy.com 
/resources/) 

:.tratcgy.com 
/,;;ucerr;./J 

About 
(http://www.data-

!ltr.ltegy.com 
hboutl) 

Contnct 
(http://www.data-

strategy.com 
/about/contzict-
u"1) 

Prl11t1cy Policy 
Chttp://www.data-
:rtmtogy.com 
/privacy-policy/} 

Cincinnati: 513.792..2716 

Columbus: 614.467..8121 

Detrolt: 248.247.3609 

Indianapolis: 317.251.8566 

Lexington: 859 .721.1500 

Louisville: 502.309.2360 

WHAT WE'RE TWEETING 

Be .sur& to :.top by our session today at Cisco 
Live in Orlando! Data Strategy pane-lists will be 
covering how they te ... http.s://t.co 
/SAqmznXuiE 

@DataStra:togyU.C • Jun 11 

(http:;://twittor.com/DataStratogyLlC/statw. 
/1006255746923757568) 

Copyright <0 2018 Data Stratogy 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Execut;ve Branch 

__.:ffl, ------------------------

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

DATE: April 6, 2018 

Cc: Anthony Chubb, City Attorney, Jeff Bowdell, Building Official, and Sheila 
Grandison, City Clerk 

RE: Agenda Item Request: Amendment of City Ordinance entitled 

"Subdivision IV. Demolition" to update, enhance and change title to 

"Article VII. Building, Demolition, Implosion, and Moving" 

In accordance with Section 3.112 of the City Charter entitled Ordinance Procedure, 
attached for your consideration is a proposed Ordinance entitled "Article VII. Building, 
Demolition, Implosion and Moving" to amend the City's current Ordinance entitled 
"Subdivision IV. Demolition." 

Based on the review and discussion with the City Council Community Development 
Subcommittee and the City's Building Official, Mr. Jeff Bowdell, the City Attorney updated 
and amended the above referenced ordinance as noted below: 

Updated Ordinance title from "Subdivision JV. Demolition" to "Article VII. 
Building, Demolition, Implosion and Moving," 

Re-numbered Sections 22-536 thru 22-556 to 22-851 thru 22-909, 

- Amended Section 22-551 (b) entitled Safety Fencing, to Section 22-866(b) entitled 
Safety and Fencing and added the following language (See Bold & Italic print for 
proposed amendments) to read: 

The contractor shall furnish and place a structurally-sound safety fence around 
the site of area on the site as approved by the City of Pontiac Building 
Official of the work being demolished adequate to secure the demolition site, 
including any resulting excavation, and to prevent pedestrian access. 

The safety fencing shall be of a type that obscures the site from being 
viewed from the outside by application of an opaque screening a minimum 
of six (6) feet in height. 

The safety fence shall remain in place until the demolished materials are removed 
from the site and all holes or excavated areas are backfilled. The fencing shall 
remain the property of the contractor. 

Contractor's compliance with the requirements of this section shall be 
determined and approved by the City of Pontiac Building Official. 



Memorandum: Agenda Request to Amend City Ordinance "Subdivision IV. 
Demolition" to "Article VII. Building, Demolition, Implosion and Moving." 
June 14, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

- Added (See Bold & Italic print for proposed amendment): Division 2 entitled 
Building Implosion Section 22-870, to read: 

Building Implosion Permit and Application and language to read: For the 
implosion of any building or structure, a site demolition permit must be 
obtained prior to application for an implosion demolition permit. The 
implosion permit application shall contain the following: Part I thru Part XV I 
(See Attached Ordinance for details). 

- Added (See Bold & Italic print for proposed amendment): Section 22-871, 
entitled Additional Conditions and Requirements, to read: 
The City may impose additional reasonable requirements necessary to 

protect the health, safety, and welfare of the surrounding community based 
upon the nature, geometry, and location of the implosion demolition. 

- Added (See Bold & Italic print for proposed amendment changes): Division 3, 
Section 22-872 entitled: Building Moving, to read: 

No person shall move any building or structure from or onto a location 
within the City without first obtaining a permit from the City of Pontiac 
Building Official. This permit shall include all terms deemed necessary by 
the City of Pontiac Building Official to ensure the health, safety and welfare 
of City and its residents. 

This permit may be refused if, in the judgment of the City of Pontiac Building 
Official, the building or structure is too large to move without causing 
damage to property, or the building or structure is unsafe or uqfit to be 
moved. 

The cost of this permit will be determined by the City of Pontiac Building 
Official and based upon the City resources necessary to safely effectuate the 
requested move. 

Copies of both the amended and final Ordinances are attached for your information and 
review. 

Also, in accordance with Section 3.112 (b) entitled Ordinance Procedure of the City 
Charter (Copy Attached): 

"Upon introduction, the Clerk shall distribute a copy to each Council member and 
to the Mayor and shall file a reasonable number of copies in the office of the Clerk 
and such other public places as the Council may designate, and shall publish a 
summary of the proposed ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City together with a notice of the time and place for consideration by the Council. 
Thereafter, the Council may amend and adopt the proposed ordinance without 
further pre-adoption publication." 



Memorandum: Agenda Request to Amend City Ordinance "Subdivision IV. 
Demolition" to "Article VII. Building, Demolition, Implosion and Moving." 
June 14, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

The following resolution is recommended: 

Whereas, the City Council Community Development Sub-Committee met to review the 
current City Ordinance entitled "Subdivision IV. Demolition", to ensure that it addressed 
concerns regarding the fencing of demolished areas, a process to regulate building 
implosions, and regulations for the safe movement of a building or structure. 

Now therefore, the City of Pontiac ordains that City Ordinance entitled "Subdivision IV. 
Demolition" be amended to "Article VII. Building, Demolition, Implosion and Moving" as 
recommended. 

JBD 

Attachments 



Subdivision l\lArticle VII. Buildin Demolition Im losion and Movin 4 /[ Formatted: Font: 14 pt 
'--'------'--'--'-~~'----'--'--------"---"--'--=-=a.'""""="'--'=-=_:cccc..::....:c:..:::--=--:c.:,,.._,.;.""'"'-'-'..,;..;'--' ..... ;...;...,;.,."--"---""'-..... '---('.'.~ 

Division 1. Demolitior 

It is the intent of these demolition-specifications to ensure that all demolitions within the City of Pontiac are 

performed in a manner that provides the highest level of public health and safety for its residents and property 

owners and, further, that the overall welfare of the community as a whole is served. It is also understood that it 

is in the best interest of the City of Pontiac to require 100 percent removal of all foreign materials from 

demolition sites and that these materials be removed from the site and properly disposed of in accordance with 

all local, State, and Federal requirements. It is also understood that all demolition sites be vegetated when 

completed to avoid the future erosion of soil and to control runoff to adjacent properties. 

It is understood that sites and properties may have environmental concerns that would affect the ability to 

remove 100 percent of the impervious surfaces. In these cases, if an owner wishes to only partially remove the 

hard surfaces from a site, the owner/applicant, at time of application, must provide the City of Pontiac with, at 

minimum, the results of ASTM (E1527 and E1903) Phase 1 and Phase 2 environmental assessments which 

have been filed and disclosed to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality showing that the property 

or portion of a property is contaminated as described in PA 451 of 1994, the Natural Resources and 

Environmental Protection Act. 

fGF4-N~03, § 1 (A), B 11 13) 

.?.?.~852 Permit application documentation. 

All demolition(s) require a permit. The application for permit shall include: 

(1) A complete application form from the City of Pontiac with site plan (signed by the owner of the 

property). 

(2) Proof of electric service disconnect. 

(3) Proof of gas service disconnect. 

(4) Proof of telephone service disconnect. 

(5) Proof of cable television/Internet disconnect. 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt 

Formatted: Centered 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 



(6) Proof of soil erosion permit. 

(7) Proof of water service disconnect. 

(8) Proof of sewer service disconnect. 

(9) Proof of right-of-way permit from City of Pontiac and Michigan Department of Transportation, if 

applicable. 

(10) MDEQ asbestos survey. 

(11) EPA ten-day notice. 

(12) Bonds as required by this article. 

fGl4--N9'-2303, § 1 (El), 8 11 13) 

??~~§§1.P.El~~r!pJigr:igfdeniolition work. 

Unless directed otherwise the contractor shall: 

(1) Completely remove and properly dispose of all structures, trash, rubbish, basement walls, floors, 

foundations, sidewalks, steps, and driveways from the specified parcel. 

(2) Completely remove any fuel tanks, outdoor toilets and septic tanks, cisterns, and meter pits, and 

plug or abandon wells. 

(3) Completely remove the materials from the demolition site in accordance with Federal, State, and 

local regulations. 

(4) Completely remove and dispose of appliances and other items that may contain refrigerants in 

accordance with 40 CFR, Part 82. Appliances and other items that may contain refrigerants include, but 

are not limited to, refrigerators, freezers, dehumidifiers, and portable or central air conditioners. 

(5) Completely remove and legally dispose of mercury containing materials including fluorescent, high 

pressure sodium, mercury vapor, and metal halide light bulbs, and thermostats containing a liquid filled 

capsule. PCB containing materials include capacitors, ballasts, and transformers where the component 

is contained within a metal jacket and does not have a specific, legible label stating no PCBs are 

present. 



(6) Provide disconnect letters from all applicable utilities with application for permit before demolition, 

and/or obtain utility disconnect permits from the City of Pontiac and allow for inspection of disconnect of 

any private utilities. 

(7) Perform site clearance, grading, and restoration. 

(8) Complete the demolition work in accordance with the plans and these technical specifications and 

any special provisions included in the approved demolition permit document. 

(9) Post all bonds determined in accordance with this code. 

(Ord. No. 2:JO:J, § 1 (C), 8 11 1 :J) 

_22-~854 Protection of the public and properties. 

(a) Littering Streets. 

(1) The contractor shall be responsible for removing any demolition debris or mud from any street, 

alley, or right-of-way resulting from the execution of the demolition work. Any cost incurred by the City of 

Pontiac in cleaning up any litter or mud shall be charged to the contractor and be deducted from the 

maintenance and completion bond. 

(2) Littering of the site shall not be permitted. 

(3) All waste materials shall be promptly removed from the site. 

(b) Street Closure. 

(1) If it should become necessary to close any traffic lanes, it shall be the contractor's responsibility to 

acquire the necessary obstruction permits and to place adequate barricades and warning signs as 

required by the City of Pontiac or Michigan Department of Transportation. 

(2) Street or lane closures shall be coordinated with the City of Pontiac Department of Public Works. 

(c) Protection of the Public by the Contractor. 

(1) Sidewalks. The contractor shall be responsible for any damage to public sidewalks abutting or 

adjacent to the demolition properties resulting from the execution of the demolition work. The cost of 

repair or replacement shall be considered incidental to the work and the contractor shall obtain all 



permits and pay any fees. Failure to repair the public property after notice will result in the City of Pontiac 

having the work completed and the cost taken from the maintenance and completion bond. 

(2) Pedestrian Access. The contractor shall be responsible to place and construct the necessary 

warning signs, barricades, fencing, and temporary pedestrian sidewalks, as directed by the City of 

Pontiac, and to maintain alternate pedestrian access for sidewalks around the demolition site, The cost 

of these items shall be considered incidental to the work. 

(3) Temporary Fence. Temporary fence shall be erected around all excavation and dangerous 

building(s) or structure(s) to prevent access to the public. Such fence shall be at least four feet high, 

consistently restrictive from top to grade, and without horizontal openings wider than two inches. The 

fence shall be erected before demolition and shall not be removed until the hazard is removed. 

(d) Demolition Hours. 

(1) The contractor shall comply with the City of Pontiac nuisance ordinance as it relates to working 

hours. 

(2) The contractor shall comply with all applicable ordinances and restrictions. 

(e) Noise Pollution. All construction equipment used in conjunction with this project shall be in good repair 

and adequately muffled. The contractor shall comply with the noise pollution requirements of the City of 

Pontiac. 

(f) Dust Control. The contractor shall comply with applicable air pollution control requirements of the City of 

Pontiac, the County of Oakland, and the State of Michigan. The contractor shall take appropriate actions to 

minimize atmospheric pollution. To minimize atmospheric pollution, the aforementioned governmental entities 

or their designated representatives shall have the authority to require that reasonable precautions be taken to 

prevent particulate matter from becoming airborne. Such reasonable precautions shall include, but not be 

limited to: 

(1) The use of water or chemicals for control of dusts in the demolition of existing buildings or 

structures, construction operations, the grading of roads, or the clearing of land. If using a hydrant for 

dust control, a permit is required and can be obtained from the Oakland County Water Resources 

Commission. 



(2) Covering at all times when in motion open bed trucks transporting materials likely to give rise to 

airborne dusts. 

(g) Requirements for the Reduction of Fire Hazards. 

(1) Removal of Material. Before demolition of any part of any building, the contractor shall remove all 

volatile or flammable materials, such as gasoline, kerosene, benzene, cleaning fluids, paints, thinners, 

and similar substances. 

(2) Fire Extinguishing Equipment. The contractor shall be responsible for having and maintaining the 

correct type and class of fire extinguisher on site. When a cutting torch or other equipment that might 

cause a fire is being used, a fire extinguisher shall be placed close at hand for instant use. 

(3) Fires. No fires of any kind shall be permitted in the demolition work area. 

(4) Hydrants. No material obstructions or debris shall be placed or allowed to accumulate within 15 feet 

of any fire hydrant. All fire hydrants shall be accessible at all times. 

(5) Debris. Debris shall not be allowed to accumulate on roofs, floors, or in areas outside of and 

around any structure being demolished. Excess debris and materials shall be removed from the site as 

the work progresses. 

(6) Telephone Service. The contractor shall arrange for access to and use of, during working hours, 

one or more telephones, land lines or cell phones in the vicinity of the work site for the purposes of 

making calls in case of fire or other emergencies. The contractor's foreman or at least one regular 

member of each shift shall be charged with the responsibility of promptly calling emergency services 

when necessary. The same person shall be required to inspect the building and the site frequently for 

possible fires or fire producing conditions and to apply appropriate corrective action, particularly at the 

close of work each working day. 

(h) Protection of Public Utilities. The contractor shall not damage existing fire hydrants, street lights, traffic 

signals, power poles, telephone poles, fire alarm boxes, wire cables, pole guys, underground utilities, or other 

appurtenances in the vicinity of the demolition sites. The contractor shall pay for temporary relocation of utilities 

which are relocated at the contractor's request for his convenience. 

(i) Protection of Adjacent Property. 



(1) The contractor shall not damage or cause to be damaged any public right-of-way, structures, 

parking lots, drives, streets, sidewalks, utilities, lawns, or any other property adjacent to the demolition. 

The contractor shall provide such sheeting and shoring as required to protect adjacent property during 

demolition. Care must also be taken to prevent the spread of dust and flying particles. 

(2) The contractor shall restore existing agricultural drain tiles or roadway subdrains that are cut or 

removed to parcels released for demolition whether or not the property is scheduled for, including 

drainable backfill, to original condition. Repairs shall be subject to approval by the property owner where 

applicable, and by the City of Pontiac. 

(Ord. Ne. 2303, § 1 (0), g 11 13) 

~~~~.§.§.§),pecial condiJigr:is and maintenance bond_s_. _____ _ 

(a) A special conditions bond shall be placed by the owner of the property when special conditions exist that 

would require that all or part of the property would not be completely removed as part of the demolition. These 

conditions shall be part of the approved demolition permit. The City realizes that not all demolitions would 

require complete demolition of a structure and its appurtenances. A redevelopment soon after demolition could 

have a site plan approved in advance of the demolition or be speculative. A subsurface contamination issue 

could cause a site to need to keep all or part of the impervious surfaces(s) for an extended period until 

remediation could be accomplished. A bond covering 120 percent of the portion of cost of the demolition that 

would not be completed shall be posted to assure that if the redevelopment does not occur or a site plan is not 

approved that the City of Pontiac could use the bond to complete the demolition if necessary. If a cash bond is 

held by the City and later returned, such bond shall be returned without interest. 

(b) A maintenance and guarantee bond shall be placed by the owner of the property for installed seed or sod 

areas for a period of one year from final inspection and approval to assure that all planting areas have 

established vegetation both for compliance with the zoning ordinance and State law. If a cash bond is held by 

the City and later returned, such bond shall be returned without interest. Value shall be determined by the 

Building Official. 

(G,4-NG.6l~ 1 (E), g 11 13) 

22..§44-856 Maintenance and completion bonds. 

(a) A maintenance and completion bond is required before any permit is issued for demolition. This bond is in 

addition to any bond required for soil erosion. The bond is to assure that all of the requirements found in this 



article are adhered to. If the contractor fails to follow this article, the building official may declare an emergency, 

and after posting the unsafe condition for 24 hours may use the bond money to assure compliance with this 

article. Demolitions that are contracted by the City of Pontiac are exempt from the bond requirements. After 

$25,000.00 in cash has been posted for any demolition bond, the balance can be posted using an insurance 

surety bond with the understanding that in addition to the emergency measures stated above, the City of 

Pontiac may also use the cash portion of the bond to pay any necessary legal or administrative expenses 

associated with gaining compliance with the surety company. Unused bonds shall be returned without interest 

after final inspection. 

(b) Bonds shall be charged as follows: 

(1) One- and two-family residential demolitions bond: (per unit) $500.00; 

(2) Multifamily residential-commercial-industrial demolition bond: minimum $5,000.00, and $0.10 

per square foot for each additional square foot up over 5,000 up to 100,000 square feet; $0.05 per 

square foot for each additional square foot up over 100,000 to 250,000 square feet; $0.02 per square 

foot for each additional square foot over 250,000 up to 999,999 square feet; $0.01 per square foot for 

each square foot over 999,999 square feet. 

EXAMPLE 250,000 sq ft building demolition bond 

Minimum 

.10 X 95,000 = 

.05 X 150,000 = 

Total Bond Amount 

$5,000.00 

9,500.00 

7,500.00 

$22,000.00 

(c) Soil erosion, if covered by a separate SESC bond, shall not be a requirement for final inspection. 

(-Grd. ~Jo. 2:J0:l, § 1 (F), 8 11 1 :J) 

?.?.~filY~~c,l~ir:,g_gf._lJ.~i.l~ir:,g_~,-

The structures identified in the permit documents shall be vacated before proceeding with demolition. In case 

the contractor finds that any structure is not vacated, the contractor shall immediately notify the City of Pontiac 

and shall not begin demolition or site clearance operations on such property until approved and directed by the 

City of Pontiac. 



{G~03, § 1(G), 0 11 13) 

22-a4J-858 Permits, fees and bonds. 

The contractor shall obtain all the necessary permits and pay all permit fees and post all bonds that are 

required by the City of Pontiac in conjunction with the demolition work. 

{Gl4-N~03, § 1 (H), B 11 13) 

.. ?.?.:~§filttlemolition schedule. 

The contractor shall be responsible for providing the City of Pontiac with a minimum of 24 hours' advance 

notification prior to beginning the execution of demolition of any structure. The contractor shall be responsible 

for providing the City of Pontiac with a minimum of 24 hours' advance notification when calling for inspection. 

{Gl4-No. 2303, § 1 (I), B 11 13) 

??1~!!.§Q.§?ly<_1ge of demolition materials. 

(a) The contractor shall be allowed to salvage demolition materials only from property owned by the 

contractor. The property ownership will be shown in the permit application documents. 

(b) No salvage will be permitted on privately owned property unless authorized by the property owner in 

writing or as directed by the courts. 

(c) The contractor may salvage demolition materials on City owned properties only if authorized in writing by 

the City in demolition contract as long as demolition is completed within the completion provisions included in 

the approved demolition schedule. All buildings, building materials, and equipment resulting from this work shall 

become the property of the contractor, and shall be removed from the premises at once. Salvaged material 

shall be removed immediately from the premises, right-of-way, streets, or alleys. 

(Ord. No. 23lk>; § 1 (J), B 11 13) 

22-a4e---861 Demolition and removals. 

(a) Structural Parts of Buildings. 

(1) No wall or part thereof shall be permitted to fall outwardly from any building except through chutes 

or by other controlled means or methods, which will ensure safety and minimize dust, noise, and other 

nuisance. 



(2) Subject to site restrictions, outside chimneys or outside portions of chimneys shall be raised in 

advance of general demolition of each building. Any portion of a chimney inside a building shall be razed 

as soon as it becomes unsupported by reason of removal of other parts of the building. 

(3) Any part of a building, whether structural, collateral, or accessory, which has become unstable 

through removal of other parts, shall be removed as soon as practicable and no such unstable part shall 

be left freestanding or inadequately braced against all reasonably possible causes of collapse at the end 

of any working day. 

(b) Basements and Foundation Walls. All basement floors, footings, and foundations shall be completely 

removed from the site unless specifically stated in the special provisions of the approved demolition permit. The 

basement area is to be inspected and approved by the City of Pontiac before backfilling is started. The 

contractor shall ensure that no basement excavation will remain open and exposed for more than 24 hours. 

The contractor shall contact the City of Pontiac when removal is complete to schedule this basement 

inspection. Failure to do so may result in reexcavation of the basement area at the contractor's expense. 

(c) Concrete Slabs. The contractor shall remove all concrete slabs, asphalt, surface obstructions, masonry 

slabs, and appurtenances. 

(d) Retaining Walls. Retaining walls or curbs near the perimeter of parcels shall be removed unless otherwise 

indicated in the approved demolition permit. The contractor shall employ hand labor or other suitable tools and 

equipment necessary to complete the work without damage to adjacent public or private property. Where such 

retaining walls or curbs are removed, the embankment shall be graded to a slope of not greater than 3:1 

horizontal: vertical or as directed by the City of Pontiac. 

(e) Partially Buried Objects. All piping, posts, reinforcing bars, anchor bolts, railings, and all other partly 

buried objects protruding from the ground shall be removed. The remaining void shall be filled with soil and 

compacted in accordance with these specifications. 

{f) Vegetation. The contractor shall remove all dead trees, trees identified for removal, stumps, all trees which 

are not an asset to the property, bushes, vegetation, brush, and weeds, whether standing or fallen, unless 

specifically stated otherwise by the City. The contractor shall protect all trees not removed from damage by the 

demolition operation. In the event that the contractor damages a tree, the tree shall be repaired or removed by 

the contractor as directed by the City of Pontiac. 



(g) Fences. Fences, guardrails, bumpers, signs, clotheslines, and similar facilities shall be completely 

removed from the site, except fences on the apparent boundary between a contract parcel and an improved 

noncontract parcel shall not be removed unless specifically stated in the special provisions. All posts for 

support shall be pulled out or dug up so as to be entirely removed. 

(h) Fuel Tanks. Fuel tanks, above or below ground, shall be carefully removed and disposed of in a safe 

manner in accordance with the State Fire Marshal's regulations and those of the Michigan Department of 

Natural Resources. 

(1) Fuel tanks, above or below the ground, or tanks which have been used for storage of gasoline, 

kerosene, benzene, oils or similar volatile materials shall be carefully removed and disposed of in a safe 

manner. The time, place and manner of disposal will be as set forth in the demolition schedule. 

(2) All other tanks or receptacles shall be pumped out or emptied in a safe manner, and then shall be 

flushed out immediately with water, carbon dioxide, or nitrogen gas until they are gas free when checked 

with an "Explosimeter" or another equally efficient instrument, before the work of removal is begun. 

Checking with the "Explosimeter" shall be done in the presence of the City of Pontiac by competent 

personnel. 

(i) Outdoor Toilets and Septic Tanks. Outdoor toilets and septic tanks shall be pumped out by a licensed 

hauling company. The toilet building or septic tank shall be demolished and removed from the site. The 

excavation or pit shall be backfilled and compacted in accordance with these specifications. Septic tanks shall 

be broken up and removed from the site and the excavation filled in accordance with the requirements of the 

City of Pontiac. 

U) Cisterns and Meter Pits. Cisterns and meter pits shall be demolished and removed. The excavations shall 

be backfilled and compacted in accordance with these specifications. 

(Ord. No. 2303, § 1 (K), 8-11-13) 

.?.?.~:'!-:1.:::862 Well pluggil)g-'a"-n;..:.d:....a_b'--a--'-n-'-dc..c.occnc.:.m.;..cec.:.n;:.:.t.:......... _______________ _ 

All wells shall be plugged and abandoned in accordance with the State of Michigan and County of Oakland 

regulations. The abandoned water well plugging record shall be filed upon completion of the well abandonment. 

(Ord. ~lo. 2303, § 1 (L), 8 11 13) 



??~.!!§.l[)i5.p()~c1I ()f c:1€!':!l()lition debris and_5.o_l_id_w_a_st_e_. ____________ _ 

(a) Debris. All materials, rubbish, and trash shall be removed from the demolition area leaving the basements 

and demolition area free of debris. Any cost incurred by the City of Pontiac in cleaning up such materials and 

debris left behind shall be deducted from funds due the contractor from their maintenance and cleanup bond. 

(b) Tires. The contractor shall assure no tires have been abandoned on site. 

(c) Disposal of Demolition Debris and Solid Waste. All debris and solid waste shall be delivered by the 

contractor to an approved disposal facility licensed in accordance with State and/or local regulations, laws, and 

zoning. 

(d) Asbestos Abatement. The handling of asbestos material is subject to all applicable State and Federal 

mandates. The contractor shall comply with applicable regulations regarding its handling and disposal. 

Asbestos shall be removed by a licensed abatement contractor in accordance with State and Federal law. In 

the event that asbestos is discovered on a property during demolition, the contractor shall notify the City of 

Pontiac and the asbestos shall be removed by a licensed abatement contractor. 

(e) Demolition of Structures with Transite Siding. The contractor shall be responsible for the proper handling 

of transite siding, and all demolition debris from these structures shall be disposed of in accordance with State 

and Federal law. 

(f) Freon Removal and Disposal. The handling of freon-containing appliances is subject to all applicable State 

and Federal mandates and regulations. The contractor shall be responsible for the identification, removal, and 

disposal of the material in accordance with applicable regulations. 

(g) PCB and Mercury Removal and Disposal. The handling of any fluorescent lighting fixtures and ballasts 

containing PCB or mercury is subject to all applicable State and Federal mandates and regulations. The 

contractor shall be responsible for the removal and disposal of the material in accordance with applicable 

regulations. 

(OrtJ. ~lo. 2:JO:J, § 1(M), g 11 1:J) 

2.2.~§§.1):3c1c:~fill,grc1c:ling, and cleanup~ __ _ 

(a) Backfill. When site conditions permit, as determined by the Community Development Director or his 

designee, on-site soil may be used as backfill material. The top nine to 12 inches of topsoil shall be stripped 

and stockpiled on site for use as final topsoil and grading material. If adequate topsoil is not available on site, 



the contractor shall bring in enough topsoil from off site to place a minimum four-inch cover on the entire site. 

Excess excavation materials shall be removed from the site. Topsoil material shall not be permitted as deep fill 

material. Any borrow or fill material shall be approved by the Community Development Director or his designee 

or an approved third party engineer before and during the placing of the material. All depressions on the 

property shall be filled, compacted to 95 percent capacity, and graded to a uniform slope with adequate 

drainage. 

(b) Compaction. All excavations shall be backfilled with acceptable material and compacted to 95 percent 

capacity. 

(c) Additional Fill Material. All additional fill material shall be of equal quality to the soil adjacent to the 

excavation and free of rubble or organic matter. The contractor shall provide for a minimum depth of four 

inches of topsoil over the excavated area. 

(d) Hand Labor. The contractor shall use hand labor where the use of power machinery is unsafe or unable to 

produce a finished job. Hand labor shall also be used to clean the site of any debris. 

(e) Grading. The site shall be graded to conform to all surrounding areas and shall be finished to have a 

uniform surface that shall not permit ponding of water. The contractor shall grade and shape the site to drain, 

complete fine grading, and final cleanup. 

(f) Final Cleanup. Before final approval of the demolition permit, the contractor shall remove all unused 

material and rubbish from the site of the work, remedy any objectionable conditions the contractor may have 

created on private property, and leave the right-of-way in a neat and presentable condition. The contractor shall 

not make agreements that allow salvaged or unused material to remain on private property. All ground 

occupied by the contractor in connection with the work shall be restored. Restoration shall include appropriate 

smoothing to its original condition and include seeding with mulch of the area. Sod must be used in place of 

seed and mulch on all right-of-way areas. On demolition sites where seeding will be delayed because of the 

allowable seeding dates, the contractor shall complete fine grading and shaping of the site to leave the site in a 

neat and presentable condition subject to the soil erosion permit and approval of the City's applicable 

regulations. 

(Ord. Mo. 2303, § 1 (M), g 11 13) 

.??~!!§§..~_,mita_'.)'. sewer and water service disc_o_n_n_e_c_t_io_n_s_. ___________ _ 



(a) Sanitary Sewer Service Disconnection. All sanitary sewer services shall be disconnected and plugged by 

a licensed plumber who has secured the necessary permits. This cut and cap must be inspected and approved 

by the City's Plumbing Inspector when the cap is left on private property subject to special provisions on the 

permit or by the City's Department of Public Works when cut in the public right-of-way, prior to demolition or 

excavation. Contractor shall also follow any requirements established by the Oakland County Water Resources 

Commission. 

(b) Water Service Disconnection. All water services and stubs for the buildings or properties within the 

demolition work shall be disconnected in conformance with City of Pontiac regulations by a licensed plumber 

who has secured the necessary permits. This cut of the water service(s) must be inspected and approved by 

the City's Plumbing Inspector when the cap is left on private property subject to special provisions on the permit 

or by the City's Department of Public Works when cut in the public right-of-way, prior to demolition or 

excavation. Contractor shall also follow any requirements established by the Oakland County Water Resources 

Commission. 

(c) Backfill and Compaction within City Right-of-Way. 

(1) Streets. Unless stipulated otherwise the contractor shall backfill, compact, and patch the surface of 

all excavations made in streets. This shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Department of Public 

Works. 

(2) City Right-of-Way. All areas within the City right-of-way (including parking and sidewalk areas) shall 

be compacted to the satisfaction of the Department of Public Works. 

(Gf4-NG.2303, § 1(0), 8 11 13) 

??~~~_<3.fE:lty and fencing~, _____________________ _ 

(a) Safety. The contractor shall comply with all applicable current Federal, State, and local safety and health 

regulations. 

(b) Safety Fencing. The contractor shall furnish and place a structurally-sound safety fence around the site Q£ 

area on the site as approved by the City of Pontiac Building Official. of the work being demolished adequate to 

secure the demolition site, inciuding any resulting debris or excavation, and to prevent pedestrian access. 

The safety fencing shall be of a type that obscures the site from being viewed from the outside by application of 

an opaque screening a minimum of six (6) feet in height. 



The safety fence shall remain in place until the demolished materials are removed from the site and all holes or 

excavated areas are backfilled. The fencing material shall remain the property of the contractor. 

Contractor's compliance with the requirements of this section shall be determined and approved by the City of 

Pontiac Building Official. 

fG~Oa, § 1(P), s 11 1a) 

_22-§e2-867 Seeding_. ________________________ _ 

All disturbed areas associated with the work shall be seeded and mulched or have sod placed, weather 

permitting. Seeding must conform to the current edition of the Urban Standard Specifications for Public 

Improvements except as modified by this code. The contractor shall provide seed mixtures in accordance with 

the specification; however, the seed shall be applied at 133 percent of the specified rate for the type of mixture 

specified. 

(Ord. No. 2a03, § 1(Q), g 11 13) 

22-M3-868 Authorized workers. 

Only the contractor and its employees are allowed to demolish, dismantle, detach, or dispose of any part of the 

demolition structure or its contents. 

fQfG.-No. 2303, § 1(R), g~ 

22~aS4-8§tDaily cleanupofright-of-_w_a~y_a_n_d~p_r_iv_a_te~p_ro~p_e_r~ty_. _________ _ 

At the end of each workday, the contractor shall clean sidewalks, streets, and private property of any debris 

caused by the demolition operation. 

fGfG.-No. 2303, § 1(S), g 11 13) 

Division 2. Building Implosion ---7 Formatted: Centered 

22-870 Building Implosion Permit Application 
For the implosion of any building or structure, a site demolition permit must be obtained prior to application for an 
im losion demolition ermit. The im losion ermit a lication shall contain t~e follol'lin Formatted: Font: 9 pt 



Part I. General lnformatlo 
(a) Completed Implosion Permit Application 

Parcel Number 
Description of Work 
Comments - Reference Site Demo Permit# ....... (Site Demo Permit) ... . 

(b) Letter from owner confirming the approval of the structure to be demolished. 

(cl Implosion Contract Valuation 

(dl Dust Control and Asbestos Abatement Permit 

(e) 12 - 24 x 36 Hard copy and digital set Site Plans. The site plan will illustrate the structure or portion of the 
structure to be imploded. Additionally the site plan will show the immediate and adiacent properties. 

Part II. Project Overview 

(a) Date and time frames 

(b) Sequence of activities 

(c) List of participants 

(d) Description of structure to be demolished 

Part 111. Contact Information 

(a) Owner. Demolition Company. the Explosive Demolition Company and their contact people involved 
with the demolition. 

(b) The overall coordinator of the proiect. i.e .• point contact will be identified. 

(c) All telephone. fax. cellular and pager numbers will be listed. 

Part IV. Time Line 

There will be a project time line that will be all inclusive, starting twenty-four hours prior to the implosion through the 
post implosion re-opening of roads and securing of properties. 

Part V. Traffic Control Outline 

This will include all road closures. 

Part VI. Fencing Plan 

Part VII. Crowd Control Plan 

This will include a depiction of the exclusion zone. 

Part VIII. Weather Guidelines/Alternate Plans 

In the event of delay for any cause. 

Part IX. Full Quality Control/Safety Regulations Manual 

(al Safety regulations. including loading of explosives. safety agents. initiation of explosive charge, type of 

(b) Rules for vehicles 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 



(cl Type of control/ who may access site 

Part X. Qualifications of the Demolition Contractor 

Including a history of projects 

Part XI. Third Party Consultants 

(a) Seismic Consultant 

(bl Sound Monitoring Consultant 

(c) Safety Consultant (my recommendation). i.e .• provide an advisory to the Fire Department to determine 
safety during placement of demolition materials. 

Part XII. Seismic and Air Monitoring Plan 

(a) Name of monitoring contractor 

(b) Site Map showing location/placement of all seismic and air monitoring devices. Final location of 
seismic and air monitors subject to the approval of the Building Official. 

(c) Pre-event survey (to be submitted within one week of the implosion) 

(d) Post-event survey (to be submitted within one week of the implosion) 

Part XIII. Licensing 

(a) Business license 

""'b'----'C"'o"'n"'tr.,,a""c"'toe.r.,,li""ce"'n"'s""e"'s'-------------------------------------- 1 Formatted: Font: 9 pt, Spanish (Spain) 

(c) 

d 

(e) 

(f) 

Asbestos control licenses 

An licensed en ineer re istrations re uired 

Blasting licenses 

Copies of all picture identifications and/or certifications as required 

Part XIV. List of All Re ulre Permits 

Including when appropriate, those required by: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

City of Pontiac Building Department 
Issued Site Demolition Permit 

Owner Authorization letter (that was submitted with Site Demolition Permit) 

City of Pontiac Department of Public Works 
Off Site 
Clean-up 

Traffic Impact (traffic plan) 

Michigan Department of Transportation 

Off Site 
Traffic Impact (traffic plan) 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 



(d) Oakland County Department of Air Quality or MDEQ 
Asbestos Abatement 
Dust Control 

(e) City of Pontiac Fire Department 
Blasting 
Pyrotechnics (as required) 

(f) Oakland County Sheriff Department and if necessary Michigan State Police 
Vehicles and Pedestrians Control 

(g) Special Events Permits 

Required permit copies will be forwarded to City of Pontiac Department of Building when the above permits have not 
been issued at the time of implosion permit application. 

Part XV. Listing of Properties Being Notified 

Subject to Department of Building approval, including notification letter as well as list of meetings 

Part XVI. Insurance for Indemnification 

At the option of the Building Official or Risk Management, more insurance will be required depending upon the nature 
of the implosion demolition and special event to be performed. 

Commercia General Liabilit · 

a. 5 000 000 
b. 5 000 000 
C, 10 000 000 
d. 10 000 000 

The insurance policy shall include the City of Pontiac;.a_s an additional insured. Co'{_erage must be primary and_non
contributory, and provide for thirty (30) days advance written notice of cancellation or reduction of coverage. At the 
option of the Building Official or Risk Management. additional insurance may be required depending upon the nature 
of the implosion demolition and special event to be performed. 

22-871 Additional Conditions and Requirements 

The City may impose additional reasonable requirements necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 
surrounding community based upon the nature, geometry, and location of the implosion demolition. 

Division 3. Buildin Movin 

22-872 Building Moving 

No person shall move any building or structure from or onto a location within the City without first obtaining a permit 

from the City of Pontiac Building Official. This permit shall include all terms deemed necessary by the City of Pontiac 

Building .. Official.toensure the .. health •. safety,.and.welfare.of Cityanditsresidents. 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

[ Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 9 pt 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 + 
Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + 
Alignment: Left+ Aligned at: OS" + Indent at: 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial. 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt, Not Bold 

Formatted: None, Space Before: 0 pt, After: 10 pt. 
Line spacing: Multiple 1.15 Ii, Font Alignment: Auto. 
Border: Bottom: (No border) 

Formatted: Centered 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt. Not Bold 



This permit may be refused if in the judgment of the City of Pontiac Building Official, the building or structure is too 

large to move without causing damage to property, or the building or structure is unsafe or unfit to be moved. 

The cost of this permit will be determined by the City of Pontiac Building Official and based upon the City resources 

necessary to safely effectuate the requested move, ~ Formatted: Font: 9 pt. Not Bold 
---------------------

----{ Formatted: Centered 
~D~iv~is-io~n~4-~V~a~r-ia~n~ce=-----------------~ 

22~&--873 Variances. 

Upon payment of the appropriate fee established from time to time by the City Council. any person aggrieved 

by the regulations in this article may file an application with the Building Official and have their position heard 

by the Board of Appeals. The decision of the Board of Appeals shall be final. 

(Ord. ~lo. 23QJ. § 1 (T). g 11 13) 

}2~.§ll-22-eee22-909 Reserved. 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt. Not Bold 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

DATE: April 6, 2018 

Cc: Anthony Chubb, City Attorney, Jeff Bowdell, Building Official, and Sheila 
Grandison, City Clerk 

RE: Agenda Item Request: Amendment of City Ordinance entitled 

"Subdivision IV. Demolition" to update, enhance and change title to 

"Article VII. Building, Demolition, Implosion, and Moving" 

In accordance with Section 3.112 of the City Charter entitled Ordinance Procedure, 
attached for your consideration is a proposed Ordinance entitled "Article VII. Building, 
Demolition, Implosion and Moving" to amend the City's current Ordinance entitled 
"Subdivision IV. Demolition." 

Based on the review and discussion with the City Council Community Development 
Subcommittee and the City's Building Official, Mr. Jeff Bowdell, the City Attorney updated 
and amended the above referenced ordinance as noted below: 

Updated Ordinance title from "Subdivision IV. Demolition" to "Article VII. 
Building, Demolition, Implosion and Moving, 11 

Re-numbered Sections 22-536 thru 22-556 to 22-851 thru 22-909, 

- Amended Section 22-551 (b) entitled Safety Fencing, to Section 22-866(b) entitled 
Safety and Fencing and added the following language (See Bold & Italic print for 
proposed amendments) to read: 

The contractor shall furnish and place a structurally-sound safety fence around 
the site of area on the site as approved by the City of Pontiac Building 
Official of the work being demolished adequate to secure the demolition site, 
including any resulting excavation, and to prevent pedestrian access. 

The safety fencing shall be of a type that obscures the site from being 
viewed from the outside by application of an opaque screening a minimum 
of six (6) feet in height. 

The safety fence shall remain in place until the demolished materials are removed 
from the site and all holes or excavated areas are backfilled. The fencing shall 
remain the property of the contractor. 

Contractor's compliance with the requirements of this section shall be 
determined and approved by the City of Pontiac Building Official. 



Memorandum: Agenda Request to Amend City Ordinance "Subdivision IV. 
Demolition" to "Article VII. Building, Demolition, Implosion and Moving." 
June 14, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

- Added (See Bold · & Italic print for proposed amendment): Division 2 entitled 
Building Implosion Section 22-870, to read: 

Building Implosion Permit and Application and language to read: For the 
implosion of any building or structure, a site demolition permit must be 
obtained prior to application for an implosion demolition permit. The 
implosion permit application shall contain the following: Part I thru Part XV I 
(See Attached Ordinance for details). 

- Added (See Bold & Italic print for proposed amendment): Section 22-871, 
entitled Additional Conditions and Requirements, to read: 
The City may impose additional reasonable requirements necessary to 

protect the health, safety, and welfare of the surrounding community based 
upon the nature, geometry, and location of the implosion demolition. 

- Added (See Bold & Italic print for proposed amendment changes): Division 3, 
Section 22-872 entitled: Building Moving, to read: 

No person shall move any building or structure from or onto a location 
within the City without first obtaining a permit from the City of Pontiac 
Building Official. This permit shall include all terms deemed necessary by 
the City of Pontiac Building Official to ensure the health, safety and welfare 
of City and its residents. 

This permit may be refused if, in the judgment of the City of Pontiac Building 
Official, the building or structure is too large to move without causing 
damage to property, or the building or structure is unsafe or unfit to be 
moved. 

The cost of this permit will be determined by the City of Pontiac Building 
Official and based upon the City resources necessary to safely effectuate the 
requested move. 

Copies of both the amended and final Ordinances are attached for your information and 
review. 

Also, in accordance with Section 3.112 (b) entitled Ordinance Procedure of the City 
Charter (Copy Attached): 

"Upon introduction, the Clerk shall distribute a copy to each Council member and 
to the Mayor and shall file a reasonable number of copies in the office of the Clerk 
and such other public places as the Council may designate, and shall publish a 
summary of the proposed ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City together with a notice of the time and place for consideration by the Council. 
Thereafter, the Council may amend and adopt the proposed ordinance without 
further pre-adoption publication." 



Memorandum: Agenda Request to Amend City Ordinance "Subdivision IV. 
Demolition" to "Article VII. Building, Demolition, Implosion and Moving." 
June 14, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

The following resolution is recommended: 

Whereas, the City Council Community Development Sub-Committee met to review the 
current City Ordinance entitled "Subdivision IV. Demolition", to ensure that it addressed 
concerns regarding the fencing of demolished areas, a process to regulate building 
implosions, and regulations for the safe movement of a building or structure. 

Now therefore, the City of Pontiac ordains that City Ordinance entitled "Subdivision IV. 
Demolition" be amended to "Article VII. Building, Demolition, Implosion and Moving" as 
recommended. 

JBD 

Attachments 



Article VII. Building Demolition, Implosion, and Moving 

Division 1. Demolition 

.?..?..~~.!5..1 ... .F.>..~rpg~.~.: ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ . 

It is the intent of these demolition specifications to ensure that all demolitions within the City of Pontiac are 

performed in a manner that provides the highest level of public health and safety for its residents and property 

owners and, further, that the overall welfare of the community as a whole is served. It is also understood that it 

is in the best interest of the City of Pontiac to require 100 percent removal of all foreign materials from 

demolition sites and that these materials be removed from the site and properly disposed of in accordance with 

all local, State, and Federal requirements. It is also understood that all demolition sites be vegetated when 

completed to avoid the future erosion of soil and to control runoff to adjacent properties. 

It is understood that sites and properties may have environmental concerns that would affect the ability to 

remove 100 percent of the impervious surfaces. In these cases, if an owner wishes to only partially remove the 

hard surfaces from a site, the owner/applicant, at time of application, must provide the City of Pontiac with, at 

minimum, the results of ASTM (E1527 and E1903) Phase 1 and Phase 2 environmental assessments which 

have been filed and disclosed to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality showing that the property 

or portion of a property is contaminated as described in PA 451 of 1994, the Natural Resources and 

Environmental Protection Act. 

.22_-852 .. Pe.rmit.appl.ication .. docu.mentatio_n ...................... . 

All demolition(s) require a permit. The application for permit shall include: 

(1) A complete application form from the City of Pontiac with site plan (signed by the owner of the 

property). 

(2) Proof of electric service disconnect. 

(3) Proof of gas service disconnect. 

(4) Proof of telephone service disconnect. 

(5) Proof of cable television/Internet disconnect. 

(6) Proof of soil erosion permit. 



(7) Proof of water service disconnect. 

(8) Proof of sewer service disconnect. 

(9) Proof of right-of-way permit from City of Pontiac and Michigan Department of Transportation, if 

applicable. 

(10) MDEQ asbestos survey. 

(11) EPA ten-day notice. 

(12) Bonds as required by this article . 

. 22.-853 .. Desc ripti.o.n .. of .. dem ol itio.n .. work ........................................................................................................................................................................................ .. 

Unless directed otherwise the contractor shall: 

(1) Completely remove and properly dispose of all structures, trash, rubbish, basement walls, floors, 

foundations, sidewalks, steps, and driveways from the specified parcel. 

(2) Completely remove any fuel tanks, outdoor toilets and septic tanks, cisterns, and meter pits, and 

plug or abandon wells. 

(3) Completely remove the materials from the demolition site in accordance with Federal, State, and 

local regulations. 

(4) Completely remove and dispose of appliances and other items that may contain refrigerants in 

accordance with 40 CFR, Part 82. Appliances and other items that may contain refrigerants include, but 

are not limited to, refrigerators, freezers, dehumidifiers, and portable or central air conditioners. 

(5) Completely remove and legally dispose of mercury containing materials including fluorescent, high 

pressure sodium, mercury vapor, and metal halide light bulbs, and thermostats containing a liquid filled 

capsule. PCB containing materials include capacitors, ballasts, and transformers where the component 

is contained within a metal jacket and does not have a specific, legible label stating no PCBs are 

present. 

(6) Provide disconnect letters from all applicable utilities with application for permit before demolition, 

and/or obtain utility disconnect permits from the City of Pontiac and allow for inspection of disconnect of 

any private utilities. 



(7) Perform site clearance, grading, and restoration. 

(8) Complete the demolition work in accordance with the plans and these technical specifications and 

any special provisions included in the approved demolition permit document. 

(9) Post all bonds determined in accordance with this code . 

. ?..?..~~.?..~ .. ~t~.t~.<?.t.i.<?..r.1 .. .9..f .. ~~.E:: ... P.':J..~.!}.~ ... c.l.l).~ ... .P.t2.P.~.~i.~~.: ............................................................................................................................................................. . 

(a) Littering Streets. 

(1) The contractor shall be responsible for removing any demolition debris or mud from any street, 

alley, or right-of-way resulting from the execution of the demolition work. Any cost incurred by the City of 

Pontiac in cleaning up any litter or mud shall be charged to the contractor and be deducted from the 

maintenance and completion bond. 

(2) Littering of the site shall not be permitted. 

(3) All waste materials shall be promptly removed from the site. 

(b) Street Closure. 

(1) If it should become necessary to close any traffic lanes, it shall be the contractor's responsibility to 

acquire the necessary obstruction permits and to place adequate barricades and warning signs as 

required by the City of Pontiac or Michigan Department of Transportation. 

(2) Street or lane closures shall be coordinated with the City of Pontiac Department of Public Works. 

(c) Protection of the Public by the Contractor. 

(1) Sidewalks. The contractor shall be responsible for any damage to public sidewalks abutting or 

adjacent to the demolition properties resulting from the execution of the demolition work. The cost of 

repair or replacement shall be considered incidental to the work and the contractor shall obtain all 

permits and pay any fees. Failure to repair the public property after notice will result in the City of Pontiac 

having the work completed and the cost taken from the maintenance and completion bond. 

(2) Pedestrian Access. The contractor shall be responsible to place and construct the necessary 

warning signs, barricades, fencing, and temporary pedestrian sidewalks, as directed by the City of 



Pontiac, and to maintain alternate pedestrian access for sidewalks around the demolition site. The cost 

of these items shall be considered incidental to the work. 

(3) Temporary Fence. Temporary fence shall be erected around all excavation and dangerous 

building(s) or structure(s) to prevent access to the public. Such fence shall be at least four feet high, 

consistently restrictive from top to grade, and without horizontal openings wider than two inches. The 

fence shall be erected before demolition and shall not be removed until the hazard is removed. 

(d) Demolition Hours. 

(1) The contractor shall comply with the City of Pontiac nuisance ordinance as it relates to working 

hours. 

(2) The contractor shall comply with all applicable ordinances and restrictions. 

(e) Noise Pollution. All construction equipment used in conjunction with this project shall be in good repair 

and adequately muffled. The contractor shall comply with the noise pollution requirements of the City of 

Pontiac. 

(f) Dust Control. The contractor shall comply with applicable air pollution control requirements of the City of 

Pontiac, the County of Oakland, and the State of Michigan. The contractor shall take appropriate actions to 

minimize atmospheric pollution. To minimize atmospheric pollution, the aforementioned governmental entities 

or their designated representatives shall have the authority to require that reasonable precautions be taken to 

prevent particulate matter from becoming airborne. Such reasonable precautions shall include, but not be 

limited to: 

(1) The use of water or chemicals for control of dusts in the demolition of existing buildings or 

structures, construction operations, the grading of roads, or the clearing of land. If using a hydrant for 

dust control, a permit is required and can be obtained from the Oakland County Water Resources 

Commission. 

(2) Covering at all times when in motion open bed trucks transporting materials likely to give rise to 

airborne dusts. 

(g) Requirements for the Reduction of Fire Hazards. 



(1) Removal of Material. Before demolition of any part of any building, the contractor shall remove all 

volatile or flammable materials, such as gasoline, kerosene, benzene, cleaning fluids, paints, thinners, 

and similar substances. 

(2) Fire Extinguishing Equipment. The contractor shall be responsible for having and maintaining the 

correct type and class of fire extinguisher on site. When a cutting torch or other equipment that might 

cause a fire is being used, a fire extinguisher shall be placed close at hand for instant use. 

(3) Fires. No fires of any kind shall be permitted in the demolition work area. 

(4) Hydrants. No material obstructions or debris shall be placed or allowed to accumulate within 15 feet 

of any fire hydrant. All fire hydrants shall be accessible at all times. 

(5) Debris. Debris shall not be allowed to accumulate on roofs, floors, or in areas outside of and 

around any structure being demolished. Excess debris and materials shall be removed from the site as 

the work progresses. 

(6) Telephone Service. The contractor shall arrange for access to and use of, during working hours, 

one or more telephones, land lines or cell phones in the vicinity of the work site for the purposes of 

making calls in case of fire or other emergencies. The contractor's foreman or at least one regular 

member of each shift shall be charged with the responsibility of promptly calling emergency services 

when necessary. The same person shall be required to inspect the building and the site frequently for 

possible fires or fire producing conditions and to apply appropriate corrective action, particularly at the 

close of work each working day. 

(h) Protection of Public Utilities. The contractor shall not damage existing fire hydrants, street lights, traffic 

signals, power poles, telephone poles, fire alarm boxes, wire cables, pole guys, underground utilities, or other 

appurtenances in the vicinity of the demolition sites. The contractor shall pay for temporary relocation of utilities 

which are relocated at the contractor's request for his convenience. 

(i) Protection of Adjacent Property. 

(1) The contractor shall not damage or cause to be damaged any public right-of-way, structures, 

parking lots, drives, streets, sidewalks, utilities, lawns, or any other property adjacent to the demolition. 

The contractor shall provide such sheeting and shoring as required to protect adjacent property during 

demolition. Care must also be taken to prevent the spread of dust and flying particles. 



(2) The contractor shall restore existing agricultural drain tiles or roadway subdrains that are cut or 

removed to parcels released for demolition whether or not the property is scheduled for, including 

drainable backfill, to original condition. Repairs shall be subject to approval by the property owner where 

applicable, and by the City of Pontiac . 

. ?.?..~~.?..?. ... ~P~~-i.c:1.! ... ~~.~-~,,i~i.~.~~-.. ~-~-~ ... '!.1.~.i.~!~~-~.~-~-~ ... ~.~-~~-~.: ............................................................................................................................................ . 

(a) A special conditions bond shall be placed by the owner of the property when special conditions exist that 

would require that all or part of the property would not be completely removed as part of the demolition. These 

conditions shall be part of the approved demolition permit. The City realizes that not all demolitions would 

require complete demolition of a structure and its appurtenances. A redevelopment soon after demolition could 

have a site plan approved in advance of the demolition or be speculative. A subsurface contamination issue 

could cause a site to need to keep all or part of the impervious surfaces(s) for an extended period until 

remediation could be accomplished. A bond covering 120 percent of the portion of cost of the demolition that 

would not be completed shall be posted to assure that if the redevelopment does not occur or a site plan is not 

approved that the City of Pontiac could use the bond to complete the demolition if necessary. If a cash bond is 

held by the City and later returned, such bond shall be returned without interest. 

(b) A maintenance and guarantee bond shall be placed by the owner of the property for installed seed or sod 

areas for a period of one year from final inspection and approval to assure that all planting areas have 

established vegetation both for compliance with the zoning ordinance and State law. If a cash bond is held by 

the City and later returned, such bond shall be returned without interest. Value shall be determined by the 

Building Official. 

.22.-856 .. Maintenance .. and .. completi.on .. bo.nds ........................................................................................................................................................................ . 

(a) A maintenance and completion bond is required before any permit is issued for demolition. This bond is in 

addition to any bond required for soil erosion. The bond is to assure that all of the requirements found in this 

article are adhered to. If the contractor fails to follow this article, the building official may declare an emergency, 

and after posting the unsafe condition for 24 hours may use the bond money to assure compliance with this 

article. Demolitions that are contracted by the City of Pontiac are exempt from the bond requirements. After 

$25,000.00 in cash has been posted for any demolition bond, the balance can be posted using an insurance 

surety bond with the understanding that in addition to the emergency measures stated above, the City of 

Pontiac may also use the cash portion of the bond to pay any necessary legal or administrative expenses 

associated with gaining compliance with the surety company. Unused bonds shall be returned without interest 

after final inspection. 



(b) Bonds shall be charged as follows: 

(1) One- and two-family residential demolitions bond: (per unit) $500.00; 

(2) Multifamily residential-commercial-industrial demolition bond: minimum $5,000.00, and $0.10 

per square foot for each additional square foot up over 5,000 up to 100,000 square feet; $0.05 per 

square foot for each additional square foot up over 100,000 to 250,000 square feet; $0.02 per square 

foot for each additional square foot over 250,000 up to 999,999 square feet; $0.01 per square foot for 

each square foot over 999,999 square feet. 

EXAMPLE 250,000 sq ft building demolition bond 

Minimum 

.10 X 95,000 = 

.05 X 150,000 = 

Total Bond Amount 

$5,000.00 

9,500.00 

7,500.00 

$22,000.00 

(c) Soil erosion, if covered by a separate SESC bond, shall not be a requirement for final inspection. 

?.?.~~.?.?.Y.~,c:..c:l.~_i ~9 ... ~r..t:>.~u~.! ~.9. ~.'...... . .... , . .. ............. ,, .......... ,,. . .......... .. . ,.. .. . ................................ , ................... , , ............................................... , , 

The structures identified in the permit documents shall be vacated before proceeding with demolition. In case 

the contractor finds that any structure is not vacated, the contractor shall immediately notify the City of Pontiac 

and shall not begin demolition or site clearance operations on such property until approved and directed by the 

City of Pontiac. 

_22-858 .. Pe.rm its, .. fees ... a nd ... bo n ds ................................................................................................................................................................................................................. .. 

The contractor shall obtain all the necessary permits and pay all permit fees and post all bonds that are 

required by the City of Pontiac in conjunction with the demolition work. 

22-859 Demolition schedule. 

The contractor shall be responsible for providing the City of Pontiac with a minimum of 24 hours' advance 

notification prior to beginning the execution of demolition of any structure. The contractor shall be responsible 

for providing the City of Pontiac with a minimum of 24 hours' advance notification when calling for inspection. 



_22_-86_0 __ Salvage .. of _demoliti_on .. materials.-..................................................................................................................................................................................... .. 

(a) The contractor shall be allowed to salvage demolition materials ohly from property owned by the 

contractor. The property ownership will be shown in the permit application documents. 

(b) No salvage will be permitted on privately owned property unless authorized by the property owner in 

writing or as directed by the courts. 

(c) The contractor may salvage demolition materials on City owned properties only if authorized in writing by 

the City in demolition contract as long as demolition is completed within the completion provisions included in 

the approved demolition schedule. All buildings, building materials, and equipment resulting from this work shall 

become the property of the contractor, and shall be removed from the premises at once. Salvaged material 

shall be removed immediately from the premises, right-of-way, streets, or alleys. 

22-861 Demolition and removals. 

(a) Structural Parts of Buildings. 

(1) No wall or part thereof shall be permitted to fall outwardly from any building except through chutes 

or by other controlled means or methods, which will ensure safety and minimize dust, noise, and other 

nuisance. 

(2) Subject to site restrictions, outside chimneys or outside portions of chimneys shall be raised in 

advance of general demolition of each building. Any portion of a chimney inside a building shall be razed 

as soon as it becomes unsupported by reason of removal of other parts of the building. 

(3) Any part of a building, whether structural, collateral, or accessory, which has become unstable 

through removal of other parts, shall be removed as soon as practicable and no such unstable part shall 

be left freestanding or inadequately braced against all reasonably possible causes of collapse at the end 

of any working day. 

(b) Basements and Foundation Walls. All basement floors, footings, and foundations shall be completely 

removed from the site unless specifically stated in the special provisions of the approved demolition permit. The 

basement area is to be inspected and approved by the City of Pontiac before backfilling is started. The 

contractor shall ensure that no basement excavation will remain open and exposed for more than 24 hours. 

The contractor shall contact the City of Pontiac when removal is complete to schedule this basement 

inspection. Failure to do so may result in reexcavation of the basement area at the contractor's expense. 



(c) Concrete Slabs. The contractor shall remove all concrete slabs, asphalt, surface obstructions, masonry 

slabs, and appurtenances. 

(d) Retaining Walls. Retaining walls or curbs near the perimeter of parcels shall be removed unless otherwise 

indicated in the approved demolition permit. The contractor shall employ hand labor or other suitable tools and 

equipment necessary to complete the work without damage to adjacent public or private property. Where such 

retaining walls or curbs are removed, the embankment shall be graded to a slope of not greater than 3:1 

horizontal: vertical or as directed by the City of Pontiac. 

(e) Partially Buried Objects. All piping, posts, reinforcing bars, anchor bolts, railings, and all other partly 

buried objects protruding from the ground shall be removed. The remaining void shall be filled with soil and 

compacted in accordance with these specifications. 

(f) Vegetation. The contractor shall remove all dead trees, trees identified for removal, stumps, all trees which 

are not an asset to the property, bushes, vegetation, brush, and weeds, whether standing or fallen, unless 

specifically stated otherwise by the City. The contractor shall protect all trees not removed from damage by the 

demolition operation. In the event that the contractor damages a tree, the tree shall be repaired or removed by 

the contractor as directed by the City of Pontiac. 

(g) Fences. Fences, guardrails, bumpers, signs, clotheslines, and similar facilities shall be completely 

removed from the site, except fences on the apparent boundary between a contract parcel and an improved 

noncontract parcel shall not be removed unless specifically stated in the special provisions. All posts for 

support shall be pulled out or dug up so as to be entirely removed. 

(h) Fuel Tanks. Fuel tanks, above or below ground, shall be carefully removed and disposed of in a safe 

manner in accordance with the State Fire Marshal's regulations and those of the Michigan Department of 

Natural Resources. 

(1) Fuel tanks, above or below the ground, or tanks which have been used for storage of gasoline, 

kerosene, benzene, oils or similar volatile materials shall be carefully removed and disposed of in a safe 

manner. The time, place and manner of disposal will be as set forth in the demolition schedule. 

(2) All other tanks or receptacles shall be pumped out or emptied in a safe manner, and then shall be 

flushed out immediately with water, carbon dioxide, or nitrogen gas until they are gas free when checked 

with an "Explosimeter" or another equally efficient instrument, before the work of removal is begun. 



Checking with the "Explosimeter" shall be done in the presence of the City of Pontiac by competent 

personnel. 

(i) Outdoor Toilets and Septic Tanks. Outdoor toilets and septic tanks shall be pumped out by a licensed 

hauling company. The toilet building or septic tank shall be demolished and removed from the site. The 

excavation or pit shall be backfilled and compacted in accordance with these specifications. Septic tanks shall 

be broken up and removed from the site and the excavation filled in accordance with the requirements of the 

City of Pontiac. 

U) Cisterns and Meter Pits. Cisterns and meter pits shall be demolished and removed. The excavations shall 

be backfilled and compacted in accordance with these specifications. 

(Ord. No. 2303, § 1(K), 8-11-13) 

.22.-86.2. We.f.1 ... P.1 ugg.i ng .a.nd ... a ban.d on.ment. ........................................................ . 

All wells shall be plugged and abandoned in accordance with the State of Michigan and County of Oakland 

regulations. The abandoned water well plugging record shall be filed upon completion of the well abandonment. 

.22-86.3 .. D.i_sposal .. of_demol.iti.on .. d_ebri.s .. a.nd ... solid .. waste .................................................................................................................................... . 

(a) Debris. All materials, rubbish, and trash shall be removed from the demolition area leaving the basements 

and demolition area free of debris. Any cost incurred by the City of Pontiac in cleaning up such materials and 

debris left behind shall be deducted from funds due the contractor from their maintenance and cleanup bond. 

(b) Tires. The contractor shall assure no tires have been abandoned on site. 

(c) Disposal of Demolition Debris and Solid Waste. All debris and solid waste shall be delivered by the 

contractor to an approved disposal facility licensed in accordance with State and/or local regulations, laws, and 

zoning. 

(d) Asbestos Abatement. The handling of asbestos material is subject to all applicable State and Federal 

mandates. The contractor shall comply with applicable regulations regarding its handling and disposal. 

Asbestos shall be removed by a licensed abatement contractor in accordance with State and Federal law. In 

the event that asbestos is discovered on a property during demolition, the contractor shall notify the City of 

Pontiac and the asbestos shall be removed by a licensed abatement contractor. 



(e) Demolition of Structures with Transite Siding. The contractor shall be responsible for the proper handling 

of transite siding, and all demolition debris from these structures shall be disposed of in accordance with State 

and Federal law. 

(f) Freon Removal and Disposal. The handling of freon-containing appliances is subject to all applicable State 

and Federal mandates and regulations. The contractor shall be responsible for the identification, removal, and 

disposal of the material in accordance with applicable regulations. 

(g) PCB and Mercury Removal and Disposal. The handling of any fluorescent lighting fixtures and ballasts 

containing PCB or mercury is subject to all applicable State and Federal mandates and regulations. The 

contractor shall be responsible for the removal and disposal of the material in accordance with applicable 

regulations . 

. ?..~.~~.~.~ .. §.c:1.~.~fiJ~1....9 .. r.~.~.i .. r.1.9.Lc:1.~.~ ... '?..!.~~.r.!.~.P.'. ........................................................................................................................................................................................... . 

(a) Backfill. When site conditions permit, as determined by the Community Development Director or his 

designee, on-site soil may be used as backfill material. The top nine to 12 inches of topsoil shall be stripped 

and stockpiled on site for use as final topsoil and grading material. If adequate topsoil is not available on site, 

the contractor shall bring in enough topsoil from off site to place a minimum four-inch cover on the entire site. 

Excess excavation materials shall be removed from the site. Topsoil material shall not be permitted as deep fill 

material. Any borrow or fill material shall be approved by the Community Development Director or his designee 

or an approved third party engineer before and during the placing of the material. All depressions on the 

property shall be filled, compacted to 95 percent capacity, and graded to a uniform slope with adequate 

drainage. 

(b) Compaction. All excavations shall be backfilled with acceptable material and compacted to 95 percent 

capacity. 

(c) Additional Fill Material. All additional fill material shall be of equal quality to the soil adjacent to the 

excavation and free of rubble or organic matter. The contractor shall provide for a minimum depth of four 

inches of topsoil over the excavated area. 

(d) Hand Labor. The contractor shall use hand labor where the use of power machinery is unsafe or unable to 

produce a finished job. Hand labor shall also be used to clean the site of any debris. 



(e) Grading. The site shall be graded to conform to all surrounding areas and shall be finished to have a 

uniform surface that shall not permit ponding of water. The contractor shall grade and shape the site to drain, 

complete fine grading, and final cleanup. 

(f) Final Cleanup. Before final approval of the demolition permit, the contractor shall remove all unused 

material and rubbish from the site of the work, remedy any objectionable conditions the contractor may have 

created on private property, and leave the right-of-way in a neat and presentable condition. The contractor shall 

not make agreements that allow salvaged or unused material to remain on private property. All ground 

occupied by the contractor in connection with the work shall be restored. Restoration shall include appropriate 

smoothing to its original condition and include seeding with mulch of the area. Sod must be used in place of 

seed and mulch on all right-of-way areas. On demolition sites where seeding will be delayed because of the 

allowable seeding dates, the contractor shall complete fine grading and shaping of the site to leave the site in a 

neat and presentable condition subject to the soil erosion permit and approval of the City's applicable 

regulations. 

_22_-86_5 __ Sa_nitary sewer .. and .. water .. se_rvi_ce .. disconnectio_ns ....................................................................................................................... .. 

(a) Sanitary Sewer Service Disconnection. All sanitary sewer services shall be disconnected and plugged by 

a licensed plumber who has secured the necessary permits. This cut and cap must be inspected and approved 

by the City's Plumbing Inspector when the cap is left on private property subject to special provisions on the 

permit or by the City's Department of Public Works when cut in the public right-of-way, prior to demolition or 

excavation. Contractor shall also follow any requirements established by the Oakland County Water Resources 

Commission. 

(b) Water Service Disconnection. All water services and stubs for the buildings or properties within the 

demolition work shall be disconnected in conformance with City of Pontiac regulations by a licensed plumber 

who has secured the necessary permits. This cut of the water service(s) must be inspected and approved by 

the City's Plumbing Inspector when the cap is left on private property subject to special provisions on the permit 

or by the City's Department of Public Works when cut in the public right-of-way, prior to demolition or 

excavation. Contractor shall also follow any requirements established by the Oakland County Water Resources 

Commission. 

(c) Backfill and Compaction within City Right-of-Way. 



(1) Streets. Unless stipulated otherwise the contractor shall backfill, compact, and patch the surface of 

all excavations made in streets. This shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Department of Public 

Works. 

(2) City Right-of-Way. All areas within the City right-of-way (including parking and sidewalk areas) shall 

be compacted to the satisfaction of the Department of Public Works. 

~?~~.~.~ ... ~~f~!Y ~r:i.~ ... f~.r.1..~i.r.1.9..: ............................ .............................................................................................................................................................................................. .. 

(a) Safety. The contractor shall comply with all applicable current Federal, State, and local safety and health 

regulations. A fencing plan must be submitted for approval with the demolition permit application 

(b) Safety Fencing Residential The contractor shall furnish and place a structurally-sound safety fence 

around the site or area on the site as approved by the City of Pontiac Building Official. of the work being 

demolished adequate to secure the demolition site, including any resulting debris or excavation, and to prevent 

pedestrian access. The safety fence shall remain in place until the demolished materials are removed from the 

site and all holes or excavated areas are backfilled and approved ground cover to prevent soil erosion is placed 

/ installed and approved. The fencing material shall remain the property of the contractor. 

(c) Safety Fencing Commercial/ Industrial Prior to commencement of work under this ordinance, the 

contractor shall furnish and place a structurally-sound safety fence around the site or under unique 

circumstances, around the area on the site as approved by the City of Pontiac Building Official. of the work 

being demolished adequate to secure the demolition site, including any resulting debris or excavation, and to 

prevent pedestrian access. 

The safety fencing shall be of a type that obscures the site from being viewed from the outside by application of 

an opaque screening a minimum of six (6) feet in height. 

The safety fence shall remain in place until the demolished materials are removed from the site and all holes or 

excavated areas are backfilled and approved ground cover to prevent soil erosion is placed / installed and 

approved. The fencing material shall remain the property of the contractor. 

Contractor's compliance with the requirements of this section shall be determined and approved by the City of 

Pontiac Building Official. 



.?..?.~~??.. ?~.~.~i.r.i.9..: ..... ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... ····· 

All disturbed areas associated with the work shall be seeded and mulched or have sod placed, weather 

permitting. Seeding must conform to the current edition of the Urban Standard Specifications for Public 

Improvements except as modified by this code. The contractor shall provide seed mixtures in accordance with 

the specification; however, the seed shall be applied at 133 percent of the specified rate for the type of mixture 

specified. 

22-868 Authorized workers. 

Only the contractor and its employees are allowed to demolish, dismantle, detach, or dispose of any part of the 

demolition structure or its contents. 

At the end of each workday, the contractor shall clean sidewalks, streets, and private property of any debris 

caused by the demolition operation. 

Division 2. Building Implosion 

.?..?..~~.!..Q ... '?..~.i_l_~..i.r.1.9. ... !.'!l.P.!.<?.~.i.<?..r.i ... P..~.r.~}r.~PP..1_i_~~!i.~.~ ................................................................................................................................... ............................. . 
For the implosion of any building or structure, a site demolition permit must be obtained prior to application for an 
implosion demolition permit. The implosion permit application shall contain the following: 
Part I. General Information 
(a) Completed Implosion Permit Application 

Parcel Number 
Description of Work 
Comments - Reference Site Demo Permit# ........ (Site Demo Permit) ... . 

(b) Letter from owner confirming the approval of the structure to be demolished. 

(c) Implosion Contract Valuation 

(d) Dust Control and Asbestos Abatement Permit 

(e) _12 - 24 x 36 Hard copy and digital set Site Plans. The site plan will illustrate the structure or portion of the 
structure to be imploded. Additionally the site plan will show the immediate and adjacent properties. 

Part II. Project Overview 

(a) Date and time frames 

(b) Sequence of activities 

( c) List of participants 

(d) Description of structure to be demolished 

Part Ill. Contact Information 



(a) Owner, Demolition Company, the Explosive Demolition Company and their contact people involved 
with the demolition. 

(b) The overall coordinator of the project, i.e., point contact will be identified. 

(c) All telephone, fax, cellular and pager numbers will be listed. 

Part IV. Time Line 

There will be a project time line that will be all inclusive, starting twenty-four hours prior to the implosion through the 
post implosion re-opening of roads and securing of properties. 

Part V. Traffic Control Outline 

This will include all road closures. 

Part VI. Fencing Plan 

Part VII. Crowd Control Plan 

This will include a depiction of the exclusion zone. 

Part VIII. Weather Guidelines/Alternate Plans 

In the event of delay for any cause. 

Part IX. Full Quality Control/Safety Regulations Manual 

(a) Safety regulations, including loading of explosives, safety agents, initiation of explosive charge, type of 
control 

(b) Rules for vehicles 

(c) Type of control/ who may access site 

Part X. Qualifications of the Demolition Contractor 

Including a history of projects 

Part XI. Third Party Consultants 

(a) Seismic Consultant 

(b) Sound Monitoring Consultant 

(c) Safety Consultant (my recommendation), i.e., provide an advisory to the Fire 
safety during placement of demolition materials. 

Part XII. Seismic and Air Monitoring Plan 

(a) Name of monitoring contractor 

Department to determine 

(b) Site Map showing location/placement of all seismic and air monitoring devices. Final location of 
seismic and air monitors subject to the approval of the Building Official. 

(c) Pre-event survey (to be submitted within one week of the implosion) 



(d) Post-event survey (to be submitted within one week of the implosion) 

Part XIII. Licensing 

(a) Business license 

(b) Contractor licenses 

(c) Asbestos control licenses 

(d) Any licensed engineer registrations required 

(e) Blasting licenses 

(f) Copies of all picture identifications and/or certifications as required 

Part XIV. List of All Required Permits 

Including, when appropriate, those required by: 

(a) City of Pontiac Building Department 
Issued Site Demolition Permit 
Owner Authorization letter (that was submitted with Site Demolition Permit) 

(b) City of Pontiac Department of Public Works 
Off Site 
Clean-up 
Traffic Impact (traffic plan) 

(c) Michigan Department of Transportation 
Off Site 
Traffic Impact (traffic plan) 

(d) Oakland County Department of Air Quality or MDEQ 
Asbestos Abatement 
Dust Control 

(e) City of Pontiac Fire Department 
Blasting 
Pyrotechnics (as required) 

(f) Oakland County Sheriff Department and if necessary Michigan State Police 
Vehicles and Pedestrians Control 

(g) Special Events Permits 

Required permit copies will be forwarded to City of Pontiac Department of Building when the above permits have not 
been issued at the time of implosion permit application. 

Part XV. Listing of Properties Being Notified 

Subject to Department of Building approval, including notification letter as well as list of meetings 

Part XVI. Insurance for Indemnification 

At the option of the Building Official or Risk Management, more insurance will be required depending upon the nature 
of the implosion demolition and special event to be performed. 



Commercial General Liability: 

a. Each Occurrence Bl/ PD 
b. Personal & Adv. Injury 
c. General Aggregate 
d. Products & Completed Operations 

$5,000,000 
$5,000,000 
$10,000,000 
$10,000,000 

The insurance policy shall include the City of Pontiac as an additional insured. Coverage must be primary and non
contributory, and provide for thirty (30) days advance written notice of cancellation or reduction of coverage. At the 
option of the Building Official or Risk Management, additional insurance may be required depending upon the nature 
of the implosion demolition and special event to be performed. 

22-871 Additional Conditions and Requirements 

The City may impose additional reasonable requirements necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 
surrounding community based upon the nature, geometry, and location of the implosion demolition. 

Division 3. Building Moving 

22-872 Building Moving 

No person shall move any building or structure from or onto a location within the City without first obtaining a permit 

from the City of Pontiac Building Official. This permit shall include all terms deemed necessary by the City of Pontiac 

Building Official to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of City and its residents. 

This permit may be refused if, in the judgment of the City of Pontiac Building Official, the building or structure is too 

large to move without causing damage to property, or the building or structure is unsafe or unfit to be moved. 

The cost of this permit will be determined by the City of Pontiac Building Official and based upon the City resources 

necessary to safely effectuate the requested move. 

Division 4. Variances 

22-873 Variances. 

Upon payment of the appropriate fee established from time to time by the City Council, any person aggrieved 

by the regulations in this article may file an application with the Building Official and have their position heard 

by the Board of Appeals. The decision of the Board of Appeals shall be final. 

22-87 4-22-22-909 Reserved. 



2018 Server and Storage 

ProLiant DL360 Gen10 - rack-
1 l 3 187 4458-S01 I mountable - Xeon Silver 4116 2.1 GHz - Alternate I $11 ,664.oo I $52,992.00 

32 GB-0 GB Bid- Scale 
Foundation Care 24x7 Service - Computing 

2 l 3 IH8QF0E I extended service agreement - 3 years - $4,416.00 $13,248.00 
on-site 

3 I 12 1835955_821 l$ma~Memory- DDR4-16 GB- DIMM Four line 2yr Sup Ext HW & SW 
288-pm items. Scalecare 

4 I 3 1874449
_
821 I

Intel Xeon Silver4116 / 2.1 GHz 
This processor 

solution is 

5 I 6 186881
4-821 I

Read Intensive - solid state drive -240 fully 
GB - SATA 6Gb/s compatible 

6 I 3 1727055
_
821 

IHPE Ethernet 10Gb 2-port 562SFP+ 
Adapter 

with the 11 
HPE line I I I $465.83 

IHPE X242 10G SFP+ to SFP+ 7m 
items in this 

7 I 8 IJ9285B RFP I I I $159.91 
Direct Attach Copper Cable 

Integrated Lights-Out Advanced 
8 I 3 I Q7E34AAE I Premium Security - flexible license + 3 I I I I $342.42 

Years 24x7 Support - 1 license 

$66,240.00 

1
HF20-2P-

(F20, 2X10GBASET, DUAL 10GBE 
9 l 1 OPTICAL (QTY. 1 PAIR), 21 X 1TB I I I I I $25,300.44 

21T-K 
HOD, 6 X 480GB 
4HR Onsite Re, SW SUP & 

Node Install I 10 I 1 ISLA-4ON IINFOSIGHT - NextGen Arrays (36 $1,200.001 $3,600.001 I $10,291.76 
Months 

on site Qty3 

Scalecare 
11 I 1 ONSITE STANDARD NEW INSTALL $1,500.00 $1,500.DDI I $4,157.80 

m $5,100.00 
_,.. 

QI I Date! 06/04/181 I • ISPWIJft $71,340.00 

o1 Time: 2:00 PM $ 120.00 
( Opened by: Annette Wesley . ~71,460 .00 

i Witness: Michelle L. McKenzie 
Witness: Craig Weller & Ken Martin 

~ 



Matching Supplier List SeNer and Storage - 2018 SeNer and Storage 

Alliance Technology Solutions 
Org. Number: 557785 

'A1ii:>rOY~&iAb1agy·.·ccc:f • .. 
•Org/Numbei: 568484·?• 

AM Data SeNice, Inc. 
Org. Number: 865240 

Anglin Civil 
Org. Number: 559183 

05/18/2018 04:27 PM EDT 

40 Engelwood Dr., Suite H 
Orion, Michigan, 48359 
United States 

. {•,24:2s s sib'd~~tt'Rd ... · . ,/. 
· { uike City;Michigan, 4965f · 

United States:,,. 

33097 Schoolcraft RD 
Livonia, Michigan, 48150 
United States 

13000 Newburgh Road 
Livonia, Michigan, 45150 
United States 

Annette D'Alessandro 

Dan D'Alessandro 

Margie Carlson 

• ';Wes Brown 

Wes Brown 

Cameron I Brent 

Ian McCain 

Thomas Miller 

• Amb;e McLau~~liri 

Josh Malik 

Ben Brueck 

Doug Anglin II 

Steve Smith 

MITN@ats.biz 

MITN@ats.biz 

MITN@ats.biz 

wes@;llprotechnol9gy.com • ... 

unknciwri@na:-repJy;com 

cameron.brent@amdataseNice.com 

lan.McCain@amdataseNice.com 

tom.miller@amdataseNice.com 

vickie@~rri~~inet.com .•.· 

vickie@amerinetcom . 

anurag@anantics.com 

anurag@superiorinfotech.com 

amclaughlin@andromed~3.us . 

. . amc1;J~hlin@;ndroieda3:us 

josh@anglincivif.com 

ben.brueck@anglincivil.com 

doug2@anglincivil.com 

steve.smith@anglincivil.com 

248-364-2195 ext 214 

248-364-2195 ext 208 

248-364-2195 

231'.:839-,7928 

231~39-7928 

734-855-7347 

7347445504 

7348557093 

734-,:995-1233 ext 111 

13isJf~12s:, · 

248-353-4090 ext 107 

248-353-4090 ext 107 

202-42~0784 

· ~02-4k~-CJ1s4i- / · 
248-595-4055 

303-319-2219 

248-866-7789 

248-397-4200 

Page 2 of 19 



Matching Supplier List Server and Storage - 2018 Server and Storage 

Civitas IT 
Org. Number: 562058 

>g~f it~!gitbi§i;}t}f : 
Commtech Design 
Org. Number: 565630 

625 Kenmoor Ave SE, Ste 301 
Grand Rapids, Michigan, 49546 
United States 

··•·>.•• '···•t•r <24foQ·North0~ter-nH~,S~ite.103 
. · ·.• if Southfield; Michigani48075 : ·· 

. United States ·' 

6581 Belding Rd, NE Suite 101 
Rockford, Michigan, 49341 · 
United States 

:'Coirip1kte'iriiJ~diJJYJ2hrid16ciieslnc .·····.·.·· ... ·. •44265°Gr'o~beck Hwy.c••·· / 
Org;INumber: 836496 ·:c> · · · · .>'/clinton twp,; Michigan, 48044 " 

• : ··· .·. ·· > •United States 

Cray 
Org. Number: 562604 

Cygnus Systems, Inc. 
Org. Number: 556357 

•·•0A1s?B~61tir@tfa!fj}i:?>···.·. 
05/18/2018 04:27 PM EDT 

901 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1000 
Seattle, Washington, 98164 
United States 

24700 Northwestern Hwy. 
Southfield, Michigan, 48075 
United States 

/i> >/39f:fa.~~1~fracil or:·•·· 

Howard Hardesty 

Howard G Hardesty 

Kenny Peach 

Marleen Hornik 

Virginia Hardesty 

Bret Emerson 

Bret Emerson 

Gregory Worth 

Gregory Worth 

Scott Kube 

Scott Kube 

Scott Kube 

. bale Jurcisin· 

howardh@civitas-it.com 

howardh@civitas-itcom 

kennyp@civitas-itcom 

marteenh@civitas-itcom 

virginiah@civitas-itcom 

emersonb@commtechdesign.com 

unknown@no-reply.com 

gworth@cray.com 

gworth@cray.com 

;;;;~ohe@cb1ho~icom 

scottk@cygnussystems.com 

scottk@cygnus-sys.com 

scottk@cygnus-sys.com 

· dajconsulfi~6@f1c,trllaU.ci>ri1 

616-965-7240 ext. 500 

855-424-8482 ext 500 

855-424-8482 ext 600 

855-424-8482 ext 620 

855-424-8482 ext. 400 

616-446-4545 ext 616 

616-446-4545 ext 616 

246-651-5364 

246-651-5364 

248457°5968 . 
. . . ... 

248-457-5962 

248-457~5950 

248-557-4600 ext 107 

248-557-4600 ext 107 

248-557-4600 ext 107 

. 24s-a3{)_i,457 
Page 4 of 19 



Matching Supplier List: Server and Storage- 2018 Server and Storage 

E& ETech 
Org. Number. 884304 

:~~~!~Jf51iiffi~
1~/t{·•·; 

ELAN Engineering 
Org. Number. 557347 

GEEP Michigan LLC 
Org. Number. 560115 

05/18/2018 04:27 PM EDT 

32826 Five Mile Road Suite 106 
Livonia, Michigan, 48154 
United States 

1230 l'ett~rk6!1ci;nf ' '' 
,.,,.·Paramount1·California;90723'' , 

/United States• . 

55309 Lyon Industrial Drive 
New Hudson, Michigan, 48165 
United States 

12237 Beech Daly 
Redford, Michigan, 48239 
United States 

324.EMk1n itrb~fc.•ii>••••.·•· >/, .. 
Northville/Michigan, 48167 . 

·•united States,. 

Edward Eadeh 

.··,. Maureen Craine 

.. ~Di;~nC~ine• 

Michael Refalo 

Michael Refalo 

Rebecca Knoll 

Rebecca Knoll 

edward.eadeh@poweronpro,com 

.• .•. inc;ine@~recycliri86fck:~~ • 

',,'rncraine@erecyclingcifca.com; 

miker@elanengineering.com 

unknown@no-reply.com 

r1"1JtitJ1;J@;n~rgyi~6c1:&;in ··.·./ 
,:vd1JEls@~N~kci'fP~OD:C()~ · .. · 

joe@enertronllc.com 

joe@enertronllc.com 

instjohh@expetecmi.com .•• 

, , · ,; e;ar{bJ~en~e)(J~ficriiJ.i:ii~ '. 

·•·• '~fi!~eJ;~ti~1~l;e2~i.do~• 

stevea@finditcorp.com 

rknoll@geepglobal.com 

rknoll@geepglobal.com 

248-876-4884 

800~7'.95~0993 ~Jct: 415 

~6d~1;si6~8k~J 11 s 
248-615-9300 ext. 250 

248-615-9300 ext. 250 

313-655-0055 

586~557-5244 
:· ............ ; ... ·.:::·>· ... ' 

586.:5;7-5244 
;::-•.:><··.:.,.:.: .. , ::·:.··:·_··:_ 
248414'1843 

586-757-1200 ext. 101 

586-757-1200 

:24a~21s--so1s ext.100 

.. · ;:if Jf,~1: •. ~1;; 
2486317585 

313-937-5350 

313-937-5350 

Page 6 of 19 



Matching Supplier List Server and Storage - 2018 Server and Storage 

lC Data Communications, LLC 
Org. Number. 563195 

'i~;~.~Gkr~i;J's@llifif*~ttcnfK;"ttt 
Org.•.Number:'893785 )/•'• ,,, •i" 

lnacomptsg 
Org. Number. 560668 

Insight Public Sector, Inc. 
Org. Number. 556390 

.1h~il~kdi}~JiB'§t%2iiiiikfib!.di:;, 
··Org: Number.,557880,·~. 

Intelligent Systems Group, LLC 
Org. Number. 899139 

05/18/2018 04:27 PM EDT 

440 Burroughs, Suite 390 
Detroit, Michigan, 48202 
United States 

•?i2a33e•aei2i<:Rcia,(su1tei=2••< 
··.· .>,. f:Wi~om;Michi~~n/48393 
, · United States ,., , 

( 

17250 W 12 mile rd ste 200 
Southfield, Michigan, 48076 
United States 

6820 S. Harl Ave 
Tempe, Arizona, 85283 
United States 

i>osaxia1'oi4 ' . , ~ '. . •. 
</., ClintonTciwnship;:Michigan,!48038',,,' 
·•·-::UnitedStates;;.O? •.• , ,, 

615 Griswold Street, Suite 925 
Detroit, Michigan, 48226 
United States 

Dwayne Carson 

Dwayne Carson 

i ,i . l\il~ttiie~ bWi1i/~ii1;,\ ; 

jamieogden 

Jamie Ogden 

Harold Lasenby 
' .. ····.•· 

'Rose Jax 

Kellie Sipp 

Russ Rezai 

Mike Stetson 

Brian Woods 

David Cristal 

Uchechuku Okike 

bids@icdatacom.com 

bids@icdatacom.com 

•<·.•·<.~'l.'illi~ms@ill1ig;buiiA~soiJtions:corii•:·. 

jamie.ogden@inacomptsg.com 

jamie.ogden@inacomptsg.com 

t~thsupp6rt@infinitetec:hs,com , 

. tii~~~n~y~infinitjt~ctii.1m 

. . ~:@\11fi~ite~hs'.CClf!l '' 

kellie.s@infosend.com 

russ.r@infosend.com 

· 1:>icls@1/itqvib;0stemsfoin · · • 

. ~~~~;in~vieisysteiil;'.~m 

•. ~~;;©ti~fovi~:syste~s'.corri • 

success@initechsolutions.com 

mstetson@insightcom 

brian. woods@insightcom 

ipsbidsupport@insightcom 

dean@isysJ.dJiri · · 
0

de~~©t\sysb:Cl)i} ' 

uche.okike@isgtecHsolutions.com 

313-887-1297 ext 
1003 

313-887-1297 ext 
1003 

248-559-5700 

248-559-5700 

714-993-2690 

714-993-2690 

586-232-2432 

800-467-4448 ext 
2121 

800-467-4448 ext. 
8679 

800-321-2437 

'•• 586'-226~7Sbo 

...... ~13~-;;_6~7800 
313-263-5104 

Page 8 of 19 



Matching Supplier List Server and Storage - 2018 Server and Storage 

MBM Technology Solutions 
Org. Number: 556130 

05/18/2018 04:27 PM EDT 

375 Robbins Drive 
Troy, Michigan, 48083 
United States 

Jason Goelde sales@mbmsolutions.com 

Jason Goelde JGoelde@mbmsolutions.com 

248-597-1095 ext 
3118 

248-597-1095 ext 
3118 

:::·:::/.::.:.-: ~ .. :;·: 
248-'.-399~7500 

586-615-8667 

Page 10 of 19 



Matching Supplier List Server and Storage-2018 Server and Storage 

Open Systems Technologies DE LLC 
Org. Number: 565664 

PCMG, Inc. 
Org. Number: 556163 

05/18/2018 04:27 PM EDT 

605 Seward Ave NW 
Grand Rapids, Michigan, 49504 
United States 

6450 Poe Avenue, Suite 200 
Dayton, Ohio, 45414 
United States 

Philip Anstett 

Kate Harms 

Tracy Vandenack 

Pam Shamblin 

Pam Shamblin 

Pam Shamblin 

panstett@ostusacom 

kharms@ostusa.com 

tvandenack@ostusa.com 

pam.shambfin@pcmg.com 

pamela.shamblin@pcmg.com 

pam.shamblin@pcmg.com 

248-515-6818 

616-588-5048 

616-574-3513 

866-310-0183 

866-310-0214 

888-445-2725 

Page 12 of 19 



Matching Supplier List: Server and Storage - 2018 Server and Storage 

Service Express, Inc 
Org. Number: 556807 

;~1~Ji~giti~f9~ttJhgUse•·cscWJ·\. 

Staples Contract & Commercial, Inc. 
Org. Number. 558049 

05/18/2018 04:27 PM EDT 

3854 Broadmoor Ave 
GRAND RAPIDS, Michigan, 49512 
United States 

>139ss6ii111'Ma.i"ietlll P1<0y, sia~<ioo:.106 
:Marietta;j3eorgia; 30067 , :/. · 
~ United States : • • _: ' · 

17187 N. Laurel Park Drive Suite 220 
Livonia, Michigan, 48152 
United States 

Jim Veltman 

MARK THOMAS 

ROB SOMERS 

Bob Najduk 

Bob Najduk 

John Geurin 

margaretrosler@secure-24.com 

i' cra.ig@sehi.corn .··_ ' 

Craig@sehi.com 

nicki@sehi.com 

bvaive@seiservice.com 

MTHOMAS@SEISERVICE.COM 

RSOMERS@SEISERVICE.COM 

bob.najduk@staples.com 

bob.najduk@staples.com 

staplesfedgovtbiddsk@staples.com 

248-854-7 404 
.. .... .. . .. 

800~233~1344 ext 220 

800:2.33:7344 ext 220 

231~;9e-1s80 eld. 215 

616-698-2221 

616-698-2221 

810-732-5823 

586-940-2293 

586-940-2293 

918-669-4695 

Page 14 of 19 



Matching Supplier List: Server and Storage - 2018 Server and Storage 

UltraLevel 
Org. Number: 559294 

VALUE INTEGRATION 
Org. Number: 567541 

05/18/2018 04:27 PM EDT 

24700 Northwestern Hwy, Ste 101 
Southfield, Michigan, 48075 
United States 

Trisha Butz 

Mark Sabbagh 

Rachel Butz 

Penobscot Building, 645 Griswold, Suite# 1900 Tariq Malik 
Detroit, Michigan, 48226 
United States Tariq Malik 

tbutz@ultralevel.com 

msabbagh@ultralevel.com 

rbutz@ultralevel.com 

Tariqm@valueintegration.com 

Tariqm@valueintegration.com 

2485957135 ext 327 

2485957135 ext 310 

2485957135 ext 334 

313-486-2886 ext 107 

313-486-2886 ext 107 

Page 16 of 19 



Matching Supplier List Server and Storage - 2018 Server and Storage 

05/18/2018 04:27 PM EDT Page 18 of 19 



Financial Services - Purchasing Division 

NOTICE 

Thank you for your inquiry regarding the City of Pontiac project listed below: 

2018SERVERandSTORAGE 

If your firm plans to bid on this project, please send an e-mail 
response to MMcKenzie@pontiac.mi.us with .the following 
information: 

Firm Name: -------------
Project Name: __________ _ 

Firm's Contact Person: --------
Te I e phone Number: ________ _ 

Fax Number: ------------
E -Ma ii Address: -----------
Post a I Address: -----------

The City of Pontiac Purchasing Division will use this information 
to communicate with you in the event an addendum or change 
to this project is issued. If you do not send this information to 
the City of Pontiac, you will not receive any follow-up 
notification of any changes to the project. 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 

Pontiac, MI 48342 



1. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

1.1 Bids to be Received 

Sealed bids for the 2018 Server and Storage will be received at the Office of the City Clerk of the 
City of Pontiac, Michigan untIFi{ocf p;m:~Monda\J;'JUi,e 4,"iois) and immediately thereafter 
will be publicly opened and read. 

Each bid must be submitted in a sealed envelope and addressed to the City Clerk of the City of 
Pontiac. Each sealed envelope containing a bid must be plainly marked on the outside as 
"2018 Server and Storage", and the envelope should bear on the outside the name of the 

bidder, his address, and the name of the project for which the bid is submitted. If forwarded by 
mail, the sealed envelope containing the bid must be enclosed in another envelope addressed 
to the City Clerk, City of Pontiac at 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, Ml. 48342. 

Bids will be received during regular business hours at the place and up to the time stated in the 
advertisement. Any extension in time will be by official notification. Bids may be delivered in 
person or mailed, but their delivery is the bidder's entire responsibility. Any bid received after 
the stated hour, even through the mail, will be returned unopened to the bidder. 

1.2 Examination of Bid Documents 

Before submitting a proposal, bidders shall carefully examine the specifications and shall fully 
inform themselves as to all existing conditions and limitations and shall indicate in the proposal 
the sum to cover the cost of all items included on the bid form. 

1.3 Withdrawal of Bids 

Any bidder may withdraw his proposal, in writing, at any time prior to the scheduled closing 
time for receipt of proposals. No bidder may withdraw a bid within ninety (90) days after the 
actual date of the opening thereof. Should there be a reason why a contract cannot be 
awarded within the specified period; the time may be extended by mutual agreement between 
the City of Pontiac, herein after also referred to as the City, and the bidder. 

1.4 Bid Form 

Each bid shall be made on the form provided, and shall be submitted in a sealed envelope 
bearing the title of work and the name of the bidder, and shall be signed by an individual 
authorized to execute the proposal on behalf of the bidder. Alternate written proposals will 
not be accepted. 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 3 of 30 



Non-Discrimination 

The Bidder agrees to comply with the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; the Federal 
Civil Rights Act of 1991 as amended; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 as amended; 
the Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, Article 2, Act no. 453, Public Act of 1976 as amended; the 
Michigan Handicapper's Civil Rights Act, Article 2, Act no. 220, Public Act of 1976, as amended 
and all other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. Specifically, Bidders and 
subcontractors are required not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment with respect to such person's hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of 
employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of such . . 

person's height, weight, race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, sex or 
disability, as defined by law. Breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of 
the contract. 

2.2 Indemnification 

To the fullest extent permitted by laws and regulations, the Bidder shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the City and its officers, directors, employees, agents, and consultants from and 
against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges 
of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) caused by, arising out of, or resulting from the performance of the 
work or from the failure to comply with any covenant or term of the contract, provided that 
any such claim, cost, loss, or damage: (i) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or 
death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself), including 
the loss of use resulting there from; or, (ii) is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission 
of the Bidder, any subcontractor, any supplier, any person or organization directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the work or anyone for whose acts any 
of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not caused in part by any act or omission of a 
person or entity indemnified hereunder or whether liability is imposed upon such indemnified 
party by laws and regulations regardless of the negligence of any such person or entity. 

In any and all claims against the City or any consultants, agents, officers, directors, or 
employees of the City by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such 
employee) ofthe Bidder, any subcontractor, any supplier, any person or organization directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone for whose 
acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation above shall not be limited in any 
way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by 
or for the Bidder or any such subcontractor, supplier or other person or organization under 
workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts. 

Insurance coverage required of the Bidder constitutes the minimum requirements and those 
requirements shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Bidder under the terms of the 
contract. The Bidder shall procure and maintain at Bidder's own cost and expense any 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 5 of30 



a. Price on invoice must correspond to the pricing listed on purchase order and/or contract. 
b. Contractor must submit price lists in accordance with bid requirements. 
c. All invoices will be original. 
d. Invoices will prominently display the requisition or purchase order number, if applicable. 
e. Invoices will be signed by the individual responsible for authorizing contract 

payments for the City of Pontiac. 

Original invoice must be submitted to the City of Pontiac, Attn: Accounts Payable. 

Payment Terms - Net 30 

2. 7 General Conditions 

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to review General Conditions as specified. 

In the quotation, a distinction between dollars and cents must be made. Also, illegible bids may 
be grounds for rejection of your bid. White out may be grounds for rejection. All changes made 
to the bid form altering price, terms, quotes, and/or conditions MUST be crossed out and 
initialed. Failure to initial any changes may be grounds for rejection of your bid. 

All funds must be quoted in US dollars 

2.8 Quotations/Proposals 

Bidders MUST submit an original and one copy, of the bid quotation/proposal. Additionally, 
duplicate copies of all descriptive literature and/or samples must be provided as requested. 

2.9 Minor Deviations 

Specifications referred to herein are used to indicate desired type, and/or construction, and/or 
operation or services rendered. Other products and/or services may be offered if deviations 
from specifications are minor and if all deviations are properly outlined and stated in the bid 
document. Failure to outline all deviations may be grounds for rejection of your bid. 

The decision of the City of Pontiac, acting through the Purchasing Agent, shall be final as to 
what constitutes acceptable deviations from specifications. 

2.10 Bonds and Insurance 

Receipt of bonds and/or insurance is part of the process of determining which bidder may be 
recommended for award to the City Administrator. if cause is found to change. the 
recommendation that your company be awarded the contract, or if the City Administrator 
Does not approve the recommendation, the City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by 
you in the bid process, including the cost of acquiring bonds and/or insurance. 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 7 of3O 



Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide the City of Pontiac, at the time the 
contracts are returned by him/her for execution, a Certificate of Insurance as well as the 
required endorsements. In lieu of required endorsements, if applicable, a copy of the policy 
sections where coverage is provided for additional insured and cancellation notice would be 
acceptable. Copies or certified copies of all policies mentioned above shall be furnished, if so 
requested. 

2.11 Performance Bond 

A twenty-five hundred dollar ($2,500.00) performance bond will be required upon execution of 
an agreement. 

2.12 Payment Bond 

No payment bond shall be required unless the City agrees to subcontract. 

2.13 Maintenance and Guarantee Bond 

No maintenance and guarantee bond shall be required. 

2.14 Subcontracting 

The City of Pontiac will not allow subcontracting for this agreement. All persons working on this 
project shall be employees of the Bidder as defined by law. 

3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

3.1. GENERAL 

The City of Pontiac is seeking a qualified bidder to supply the City of Pontiac computer server 
and storage equipment. 

No subsequent adjustment in proposed price will be allowed because of Contractor's failure to 
understand the nature or scope of the work. 

The Scope of Work shall include, but not be limited to providing Server and Storage equipment 
and services. The successful bidder shall demonstrate past experience in computer hardware 
sales for at least two years. 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable O.S.H.A and M.1.0.S.H.A laws and regulations. The 
Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel for the services to be provided hereunder, such 
personnel to be employees of Contractor. Contractor shall provide the services hereunder as an 
independent contractor, and nothing herein contained shall be construed to be inconsistent with 
this relationship or status. 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 9 of3O 



To: City of Pontiac, Michigan 

To All Here Present: 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 

________ _,2018 

Having carefully examined the specifications of the proposed equipment, and being fully 
informed in regard to the conditions to be met in the prosecution and completion of the work, 
and having read and examined the Instructions to Bidders, Agreement, Bonds, General 
Conditions, Plans and Specifications pertaining to this work and agreeing to be bound 
accordingly, the undersigned proposes to furnish all the materials, labor, and other equipment 
as necessary in full accordance with and conformity to the plans and specifications for this work 
now on file in the office of the City's at and for the following named prices, to wit: 

NOTE: This proposal is solicited on a unit price and lump sum basis for equipmen·t. 

THIS BID PROPOSAL MUST BE SUBMITTED BACI< TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC IN ITS ENTIRETY AS PART OF 
THE CONTRACTORS BID SUBMISSION. MAl<E SURE THAT ALL PAGES ARE COMPLETELY FILLED OUT 
AND THAT ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED IS COMPLETE. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY BE CAUSE TO 
REJECT YOUR BID PROPOSAL. IF A BID IS NOT BEING SUBMITTED FOR A PARTICULAR AREA OF WORK, 
PLEASE MARI< "NO BID" IN THE APPROPRIATE SPACE. 

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF THE FOLLOWING ADDENDUM: {if issued) 

Addendum# Dated 

Addendum# Dated 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 11 of30 



CITY OF PONTIAC - BID PROPOSAL 
I, the undersigned, propose to provide services proposed in this contract as per specifications 
supplied by the City of Pontiac. No contract is active until a purchase order is issued to the 
successful bidder. 

I further propose to deliver the above-described services for the City of Pontiac in first class 
operating manner in accordance with all specifications contained herein subject to purchaser's 
inspection of services performed. 

I attest that the bid includes all information necessary for the City of Pontiac to accept bid. 

Company Name: ___________________________ _ 

Address: -------------------------------

Representative Signature: ________________________ _ 

Print Name: ------------------------------

Title: -------------------

Office# Cell# -------------- '-'----------------

FAX# ---------

Federal Tax Identification Number: ------------------

The City of Pontiac is a tax-exempt Michigan municipal corporation and is exempt from sales tax. 
Exemption certificate can be provided upon request. 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 13 of 30 



CONTRACT FOR [TYPE OF SERVICE] 

1) Parties. The parties to this contract are the City of Pontiac, Michigan hereinafter referred to 

as the 11 City", and [NAME OF CONTRACTOR) hereinafter called the "Contractor". 

2) Purpose. The purpose of this contract is for the City to engage the Contractor to provide 
[TYPE OF SERVICE] to the City (see Scope of Services below). 

3) Scope of Services. The Contractor will provide all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and 
supervision to perform [TYPE OF SERVICE] in the City. The Contractor is to perform all work in 
accordance with generally accepted standards and practices. 

4) General Terms and Conditions. This contract Is hereby made subject to the terms and 
conditions included in the Scope of Services (see Exhibit 11A" below) and Additional Terms and 
Conditions (see Exhibit 11B11 below). 

5) Consideration. As consideration for the performance of the services referenced in the Scope 
of Services (see Exhibits 11A11 & 11B" below), the City agrees to compensate the Contractor as 
follows: 

[INSERT PAYMENT TERMS PER CONTRACT] 

6) Period of Performance. This contract will become effective for the period beginning [TIME 
PERIOD), with [ANY RENEWAL OPTIONS] upon the approval and signature of the parties hereto. 

7) Method of Payment. Contractor will be paid 30 days after completion of work as outlined in 
the Scope of Services after submission of a valid invoice. 

8) Applicable Law. This contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the City of Pontiac, State of Michigan and applicable federal laws. 

9) Compliance with Laws. The Contractor understands that the City is an equal opportunity 
employer and, therefore, maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on 
race, color, creed, sex, age, national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or 
any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is 
unlawful and the Contractor agrees during the term of the agreement that the Contractor will 
strictly adhere to this policy in its employment practices and provision of services. The 
Contractor shall comply with, and all activities under this agreement shall be subject to, all 
applicable federal, State of Michigan, and City of Pontiac laws and regulations, as now existing 
and as may be ar:r,ended or modified. 

The Contractor is responsible for instructing and training their employees in appropriate safety 
measures. Employees will be responsible for maintaining a safe work environment while 
completing their tasks. 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 15 of30 



EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Contractor shall provide [TYPE OF SERVICE]. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, Contractor shall furnish all labor, supervision and services 
necessary to properly execute and complete the work. 

[INSERT SPECIFICS OF RFP HERE] 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 17 of 30 



6) Insurance. The Contractor shall not commence work under this contract until it has 
obtained the required insurance under this paragraph. All coverage shall be with 
insurance companies licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan. All 
coverage shall be with carriers acceptable to the City of Pontiac: 

a) Workers' Compensation Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this contract, Workers' Insurance, including Employers Liability 
Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan with a 
minimum limit of $100,000 each accident for any employee. 

b) Commercial General Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this contract, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 
and aggregate for Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage, coverage shall 
include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; (B) Products and 
Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractors Coverage; (D) Broad Form 
General Liability Extensions or equivalent: (E) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and 
Underground (XCU) Exclusions, if applicable; (F) Per project aggregate. 

c) Motor Vehicle Liability. The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of 
this contract Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault 
Coverage, with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 
combined single limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all 
owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles. 

d) Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following 
shall be Additionally Insured: The City of Pontiac, all elected and appointed officials, 
all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions, and/or authorities and board 
members, including employees and volunteers. Coverage maintained by contractor 
shall be primary over any other insurance carried by the City of Pontiac 

e) Cancellation Notice: All policies described above shall include an endorsement 
stating the following: "It is understood and agreed. that Thirty (30) days Advance 
Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction and/or Material Change 
shall be sent to City Administrator for the City of Pontiac. 

f) Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide the City of Pontiac, at the 
time the contracts are returned for execution, certificates for all coverage listed 
above. 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 19 of 30 



false statements, or receiving stolen property; (d) is not presently indicted for or 
otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, state or local) 
with commission of any of these offenses enumerated in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this 
certification; and, (e) has not, within a three year period preceding this proposal, had 
one or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

8) Disclosure of confidential information. In the event that either party to this contract 
receives notice that a third party requests divulgence of confidential or otherwise 
protected information and/or has served upon it subpoena or other validly issued 
administrative or judicial process ordering divulgence of confidential or otherwise 
protected information that party shall promptly inform the other party and thereafter 
respond in conformity with such subpoena to the extent mandated by law. This section 
shall survive the termination or completion of this contract. 

9) Exceptions to confidential information. The Contractor and the City shall not be 
obligated to treat as confidential and proprietary any information disclosed by the other 
party ("disclosing party") which: (a) is rightfully known to the recipient prior to 
negotiations leading to this contract, other than information obtained in confidence 
under prior engagements; (b) is generally known or easily ascertainable by nonparties of 
ordinary skill in the business of the customer; (c) is released by the disclosing party to 
any other person, firm, or entity (including governmental agencies or bureaus) without 
restriction; (d) is independently developed by the recipient without any reliance on 
confidential information; (e) is or later becomes part of the public domain or may be 
lawfully obtained by the City or the Contractor from any nonparty; or, (f) is disclosed 
with the disclosing party's prior written consent. 

10} Default. If the Contractor: 

a) Fails to supply complete labor and supervision in sufficient time and quantity to 
meet the City's progress schedule, as it may be modified: 

b) Causes stoppage or delay of, or interference with, the project; 

c) Fails to promptly pay its employees for work on the project; 

d) Fails to pay worker's compensation or other employee benefits, withholding or any 
other taxes; 

e) Fails to comply with the safety provisions of the Contract or with any safety order, 
regulation or requirement of any governing authority having jurisdiction over this 
project; 

f) Makes unauthorized changes in supervisory personnel; 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 21 of30 



11) Failure to enforce. Failure by the City at any time to enforce the provisions of the 
contract shall not be construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to 
enforce shall not affect the validity of the contract or any part thereof or the right of the 
City to enforce any provision at any time in accordance with its terms. 

12) Final payment. Upon satisfactory completion of the work performed under this 
contract, as a condition before final payment under this contract, or as a termination 
settlement under this contract, the Contractor shall execute and deliver to the City a 
release of all claims against the City arising under, or by virtue of, the contract, except 
claims which are specifically exempted by the Contractor to be set forth therein. Unless 
otherwise provided in this contract, by state law, or otherwise expressly agreed to by 
the parties in this contract, final payment under the contract or settlement upon 
termination of this contract shall not constitute waiver of the City's claims against the 
Contractor under this contract. 

13) Force majeure. Each party shall be excused from performance for any period and to the 
extent that it is prevented from performing any obligation or service, in whole or in part, 
as a result of causes beyond the reasonable control and without the fault or negligence 
of such party and/or its subcontractors. Such acts shall include without limitation acts of 
God, strikes, lockouts, riots, and acts of war, epidemics, governmental regulations 
superimposed after the fact, fire, earthquakes, floods, or other natural disasters (the 
"force majeure events"). When such a cause arises, the Contractor shall notify the City 
immediately in writing of the cause of its inability to perform, how it affects its 
performance, and the anticipated duration of the inability to perform. Delays in delivery 
or in meeting completion dates due to force majeure events shall automatically extend 
such dates for a period equal to the duration of the delay caused by such events, unless 
the City determines it to be in its best interest to terminate the contract. 

14) Indemnification. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the Contractor shall indemnify, 
defend, save and hold harmless, protect, and exonerate the City, its commissioners, 
board members, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and the State of Michigan 
from and against all claims, demands, liabilities, suits, actions, damages, losses, and 
costs of every kind and nature whatsoever including, without limitation, court costs, 
investigative fees and expenses, and attorneys' fees, arising out of or caused by the 
Contractor and/or its partners, principals, agents, employees and/or subcontractors in 
the performance of or failure to perform this contract. In the City's sole discretion, the 
Contractor may be allowed to control the defense of any such claim, suit, etc. In the 
event the Contractor defends said claim, suit, etc., the Contractor shall use legal counsel 
acceptable to the City. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all costs and/or 
expenses associated with such defense, and the City shall be entitled to participate in 
said defense. The Contractor shall not settle any claim, suit, etc., without the City's 
concurrence, which the City shall not unreasonably withhold. 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 23 of 30 



Contractor's internal administrative and quality assurance files and internal project 
correspondence. The Contractor shall deliver such documents and work papers to the 
City upon termination or completion of the contract. The foregoing notwithstanding, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to retain a set of such work papers for its files. The 
Contractor shall be entitled to use such work papers only after receiving written 
permission from the City and subject to any copyright protections .. 

20) Priority. The contract consists of this contract with exhibits. Any ambiguities, conflicts 
or questions of interpretation of this contract shall be resolved by first, reference to this 
contract with exhibits and, if still unresolved, by reference to the bid. Omission of any 
term or obligation from this contract shall not be deemed an omission from this 
contract if such term or obligation is provided for elsewhere in this contract. 

21) Quality control. The Contractor shall institute and maintain throughout the contract 
period a properly documented quality control program designed to ensure that the 
services are provided at all times and in all respects in accordance with the contract. The 
program shall include providing daily supervision and conducting frequent inspections of 
the Contractor's staff and ensuring that accurate records are maintained describing the 
disposition of all complaints. The records so created shall be open to inspection by the 
City. 

22) Record retention and access to records. Provided the Contractor is given reasonable 
advance written notice and such inspection is made during normal business hours of the 
Contractor, the City or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, 
prompt access to any of the Contractor's books, documents, papers, and/or records 
which are maintained or produced as a result of the project for the purpose of making 
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. All records related to this contract 
shall be retained by the Contractor for three years after final payment is made under 
this contract and all pending matters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or 
other action arising out of or related in any way to this project is commenced before the 
end of the three year period, the records shall be retained for one year after all issues 
arising out of the action are finally resolved or until the end of the three year period, 
whichever is later. 

23) Recovery of money. Whenever, under the contract, any sum of money shall be 
recoverable from or payable by the Contractor to the City, the same amount may be 
deducted from any sum due to the Contractor under the contract or under any other 
contract between the Contractor and the City. The rights of the City are in addition and 
without prejudice to any other right the City may have to claim the amount of any loss 
or damage suffered by the City on account of the acts or omissions of the Contractor. 

24) Right to audit. The Contractor shall maintain such financial records and other records as 
may be prescribed by the City or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 
regulations. The Contractor shall retain these records for a period of three years after 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 25 of30 



29) 

under terminated orders or subcontracts to the State of Michigan. The Contractor 
shall still complete the work not terminated by the notice of termination and may 
incur obligations as are necessary to do so. 

Termination for default clause. 

a) Default. If the Contractor refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 
contract with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in 
this contract or any extension thereof, or otherwise fails to timely satisfy the 
contract provisions, or commits any other substantial breach of this contract, the 
City may notify the Contractor in writing of the delay or nonperformance and if not 
cured in ten days or any longer time specified in writing by the City, the City may 
terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the contract or such part of the 
contract as to which there has been delay or a failure to properly perform. In the 
event of termination in whole or in part, the City may procure similar supplies or 
services in a manner and upon terms· deemed appropriate by the City. The 
Contractor shall continue performance of the contract to the extent it is not 
terminated and shall be liable for excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods or 
services. 

b) Contractor's Duties. Notwithstanding termination of the contract and subject to any 
directions from the City, the Contractor shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary 
action to protect and preserve property in the possession of the Contractor in which 
the City has an interest. 

c) Compensation. Payment for completed services delivered and accepted by the City 
shall be at the contract price. The City may withhold from amounts due the 
Contractor such sums as the City deems to be necessary to protect the City against 
loss because of outstanding liens or claims of former lien holders and to reimburse 
the City for the excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods and services. 

d) Excuse for Nonperformance or Delayed Performance. Except with respect to 
defaults of subcontractors, the Contractor shall not be in default by reason of any 
failure in performance of this contract in accordance with its terms (including any 
failure by the Contractor to make progress in the prosecution of the work hereunder 
which endangers such performance) if the Contractor has notified the City within 15 
days after the cause of the delay and the failure arises out of causes such as: acts of 
God; acts of the public enemy; acts of the State of Michigan and any other 
governmental entity in its sovereign or contractual capacity; fires; floods; epidemics; 
quarantine restrictions; strikes or other labor disputes; freight embargoes; or 
unusually severe weather. If the failure to perform caused by the failure of a 
subcontractor to perform or to make progress, and if such failure arises out of 
causes similar to those set forth above, the Contractor shall not be deemed to be in 
default, unless the services to be furnished by the subcontractor were reasonably 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 27 of 30 



constitute an acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder 
or otherwise afforded by any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or 
remedy. No waiver by either party to this contract shall be valid unless set forth in 
writing by the party making said waiver. No waiver of or modification to any term or 
condition of this contract will void, waive, or change any other term or condition. No 
waiver by one party to this contract of a default by the other party will imply, be 
construed as, or require waiver of future or other defaults. 

34) Taxes and Contributions. The Contractor hereby accepts and assumes exclusive liability 
for and shall indemnify, protect and save harmless the City from and against the 
payment of: 

a) Contractor agrees to contact the City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and 
Compliance Section, 47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan 48342, to establish 
reporting and withholding obligations under the City of Pontiac Income Tax 
Ordinance. Contractors will require the same of all subcontractors employed to 
perform any work in the City of Pontiac. 

Web page URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/index.php 

Tax forms URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/tax forms.php 

b) All contributions, taxes or premiums (including interest and penalties thereon) which 
may be payable under the Unemployment Insurance Law of any State, the Federal 
Social Security Act, Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Tax Withholding Act, 
Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Jax Withholding Laws, or any other law, 
measured upon the payroll of or required to be withheld from employees by 
whomsoever employed or engaged in the work to be performed and furnished 
under this contract. 

c) All sales, use, personal property and other taxes (including interest and penalties 
thereon) required by any Federal, State, County, Municipal or other law to be paid 
or collected by the Contractor or any of its vendors or any other person or persons 
acting for, through or under it or any of them, by reason of the performance of this 
work or the acquisition, furnishing, or use of any materials, equipment, supplies, 
labor, services or other items for or in connection with the work. 

d) All pension, welfare, vacation, annuity and other union benefit contributions 
payable, under or in connection with respect, to all persons; by whomsoever 
employed or engaged in the work to be performed and furnished under this 
Contract. 

2018 Server and Storage RFP Page 29 of30 



ADDENDUM NO. 1 * 
DATED 05/31/2018 

TO THE REQUEST FOR BIDS FOR 

2018 Server and Storage 
The following modifications are to be incorporated into the request for bids and contract docl!ments for the 
above referenced project: 

Changes to the MITN solicitation: 

On page 12 of the bid document Form of Proposal 

To change an error on a Quantity: 

Foundation Care 24x7 Service - extended service 
agreement - 3 years - on-site 

The QTY needs to be changed to "3" (three) 

2 ~ I H8QF0E I 
Foundation Care 24x7 Service - extended service 
agreement - 3 years - on-site 

All other terms and conditions of the remaining Request for Bids remain the same. 

Michelle McKenzie 
Purchasing Agent 
City of Pontiac 
MMcKenzie@pontiac.mi.us 
248-758-3120 

* NOTE - If your company has already submitted a bid: 

1. A change can be sent through next day delivery service (USPS, UPS, FedEx, DHL, Etc ... ) 
Please put "CHANGE TO BID" on the outside of the delivery envelope/parcel. 

2. OR, during the bid opening the price will be adjusted to reflect three (3) quantity pricing. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable City Council 

FR: Garland Doyle, M.P.A., CNP 
Deputy Director, Community Development Department 

THRU: Jane Bais DiSessa 
Deputy Mayor 

DA: June 14, 2018 

RE: Public Hearing for Reprogramming of Community Development Block Grant Program 
Year 2016 Funds 

We are requesting that the City Council approve the reprogramming of $75,000 from 
Employment and Training to Public Services (General-Yard Services) so the City can implement 
a program for low-income seniors. We will provide snow removal, lawn mowing and dangerous 
tree removal for seniors. Prior to the City Council voting to approve the reprogramming, a public 
hearing will need to be held. We are required to inform the public at least 10 days prior to the 
public hearing. In order to meet this notice requirement, we are requesting that your honorable 
body set the public hearing for July 17, 2018. I have attached a copy of the public hearing 
notification that the City Clerk will have to publish in the paper. 

We are requesting that you adopt the following resolution at your June 26, 2018 meeting in order 
for us to meet the public hearing notice requirement. 

Resolved that the Pontiac City Council schedules a public hearing on the 
Reprogramming of Community Development Block Grant Program Year 2016 fimds 
$75,000 from Employment and Training to Public Services (General-Yard Services) on 
July 17, 2018. 

47450 WOODWARD AVE., PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342 • (248) 758-3030 • Fax (248) 758-3292 



City of Pontiac 
City Council 

Notice of Public Hearing 
Community Development Block Grant Funds 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that in accordance with Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) requirements a Public Hearing will be held by the City of Pontiac at Pontiac City Hall 
on Tuesday, July 17, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. at the City Council Chambers in City Hall 47450 
Woodward Avenue, Pontiac MI 48342 to receive written and verbal comment regarding 
the reprogramming of federal CDBG funds as follows: 

Exisiting-2016 Program Year 
Activity Number 731941 
Activity Description Employment and Training 
Amount $75,000.00 

Proposed-2016 Program Year 
Activity Number 732170 
Activity Description Public Services (General-Yard Services) 
Amount $75,000.00 

Arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs, including handicap accessibility or 
interpreter, will be made upon receiving a 72-hour advanced notice. Please contact Garland 
Doyle at (248) 758-3030 for special services. 

Sheila Grandison, Acting City Clerk 
Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., CNP, Deputy Director, Community Development 

Published (Oakland Press, June 28, 2018) 

4 7450 WOODWARD A VE., PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342 • (248) 758-3030 • Fax (248) 758-3292 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council 

FROM: Arthur F. Mullen, AICP - Interim City Planner 

Through the Office of Deputy Mayor - Jane Bais-Disessa 

SUBJECT: ZMA 18-05 Zoning Map Amendment Request 
339 S. Paddock Street- PIN 64-14-33-179-001 
R-1 One Family Dwelling District to M-1 Light Manufacturing District 

DATE: June 13, 2018 

Analysis of Petition 

The City is in receipt of a request from Charles Corkum on behalf of the Michigan Land Bank Fast Track 
Authority to rezone approximately 1.7 acres of land located on the eastside of S. Paddock Street to the 

south Osum Street from R-1 One Family Dwelling District to M-1 Light Manufacturing District. According 
to the completed Application for Zoning Map Amendment, the applicant proposes to construct a one
story 12,000 square foot car storage building. 

The applicant's proposed use is determined to be a Wholesale Storage/Distribution Principal Permitted 
Use, which is a permitted use within the M-1 Light Manufacturing District. If the zoning map amendment 

is approved, the applicant will be required to complete a full site plan review per Section 6.204 to obtain 

site plan review approval prior to receiving building permits. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial, & Green Land Use Category. 
This land use category is designed to provide flexibility to encourage the positive reuse of vacant or 

underutilized properties in strategic locations around the City. This request complies with these Master 

Plan goals for this land use category including allowing flexibility to attract creative entrepreneurs to 

redevelop vacant sites. With the M-1 Concourse project located nearby, the City has seen a large number 
of collectable automobile related businesses desiring to locate near the facility. This site is located two 

blocks away, and the applicant's goal is to leverage this location to rent vehicle storage to owners of 

classic and collectable vehicles. 

The site was formerly zoned industrial, and it was used by industrial users from the turn of the 20th 

Century until a commercial use took over a portion of the site. After the parcel was foreclosed upon by 

1 



the Michigan Land Bank Authority, they requested that the subject site be rezoned to R-1 One Family 
Dwelling Residential that is in keeping with the surrounding land uses to the north and south of the site. 

After the City rezoned the parcel, environmental testing was conducted on the subject site, and the Phase 
2 and further soil testing indicated that the site would not be suitable for residential development. The 
applicant has a conditional sale with the Michigan Land Bank Authority, and the sale cannot be 
consummated unless this rezoning petition is granted by the City. 

Per the review requirements found in Sec. 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission found 
compliance with the review requirements and recommends that the applicant's rezoning request be 
approved for the subject site. 

2 



ZMA 18-05 - Zoning Map Amendment 
Address: 339 S. Paddock Street 
Parcel: 64-14-33-179-001 

Resolution 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for 339 S. Paddock 
Street, identified as PIN 64-14-33-179-001 from Charles Corkum on behalf of Michigan Land Bank 
Fast Track Authority, and the applicant's petition is for the rezoning of the aforementioned parcel; 
and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the 
City's Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements 
set forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 
aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of 
Pontiac Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, 
Public Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On June 6, 2018, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 
339 S. Paddock Street, approving the change from the current R-1 One Family Dwelling District 
zoning to M-1 Light Manufacturing District; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 18-05) request for 339 S. 
Paddock Street, also known as PIN 64-14-33-179-001, to amend the current site zoning from R-1 
One Family Dwelling District zoning to M-1 Light Manufacturing District. 

3 



339 S. Paddock Street 

4 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council 

Arthur F. Mullen, AICP - Interim City Planner 
Through the Office of Deputy Mayor - Jane Bais-Disessa 

ZMA 18-06 

June 13, 2018 

Zoning Map Amendment Request 
1000 Vanguard Drive - PIN 64-14-19-351-022 
MUD Mixed Use Development District to M-1 Light Manufacturing 

District 

Analysis of Petition 

The City has received a request from Butzel Long, PC on behalf of the Stetzer Properties/Pontiac 

Community Investment to rezone approximately 50 acres of land located at the eastern end of Vanguard 
Drive (part of the site of the former Eastern Michigan Asylum) from MUD Mixed Use District to M-1 Light 

Manufacturing District. According to the completed Application for Zoning Map Amendment, the 
developer proposes to construct an 82,700 square foot freight terminal with an additional approximately 
27,000 square foot addition in phase two. 

The applicant's proposed use is determined to be a Terminal/Freight Principal Permitted Use, and this 
type of use is permissible in an M-1 Light Manufacturing District as-a-right. If the zoning map amendment 

is approved, the applicant will be required to complete a full site plan review per Section 6.204 to obtain 
preliminary site plan review. 

The subject site is designated as the Civic Future Land Use Category. This site was rezoned in 2000 after 
the demolition of the Eastern Michigan Asylum with this Civic land use category included in the 

subsequent Master Plan land use amendment in 2008. The Civic use was envisioned for expansion of the 
Oakland County municipal campus. Oakland County has sufficient space on its campus for expansion so 
the subject site's use of the MUD district is not necessary for expansion of Civic uses. In addition, the 

subject site's non-central location would not be conducive to other Civic land uses either. 

Per the lack of development interest over the last nearly 20 years for the site and with the goals of the 

Master Plan to take advantage of Pontiac's central location and focus on job creation efforts, this request 
complies with the 2014 Master Plan general vision and goals. 

1 



The subject site and abutting property to the south and west are zoned MUD Mixed Use District which 
were part of the former Eastern Michigan Asylum property. The Oakland County complex to the 
northwest is zoned GOT Government Office Technological District. The railroad yard abutting the parcel 
to the northeast is zoned M-1 Light Manufacturing District. 

In the MUD requirements found in Sec. 3.704.D, it does permit light industrial uses that shall not exceed 
45% of the district's area. The subject site is only approximately 23% of the entire district's area, ensuring 
compliance with the intent and the size and placement requirements found within this section for the 
former Eastern Michigan Asylum site, and the rezoning complies with these goals. 

Per the review requirements found in Sec. 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission found 
compliance with the review requirements and recommends that the applicant's rezoning request be 
approved for the subject site. 

2 



ZMA 18-06 - Zoning Map Amendment 
Address: 1000 Vanguard Drive 
Parcel: 64-14-19-351-022 

Resolution 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for Parcel ID Number 
64-14-19-351-022, also known as 1000 Vanguard Drive, from Butzel Long, PC for Stetzer 
Properties/Pontiac Community Investment, LLC, and the applicant's petition is for the rezoning of 
the aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the 
City's Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements 
set forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 
aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of 
Pontiac Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, 
Public Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On June 6, 2018, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 
PIN 64-14-19-351-022, approving the change from the current MUD Mixed Use District zoning to 
M-1 Light Manufacturing District; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 18-06) request for PIN 64-14-
19-351-022, to amend the current zoning from MUD Mixed Use District zoning to M-1 Light 
Manufacturing District. 

3 



PIN 64-14-19-351-022 

4 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council 

Arthur F. Mullen, AICP - Interim City Planner 
Through the Office of Deputy Mayor - Jane Bais-Disessa 

ZMA 18-03 

June 13, 2018 

Zoning Map Amendment Request 
245 S. Paddock Street - PIN 64-14-33-136-001 
R-2 Two Family and Terrace Family Dwelling to R-3 Multiple Family 

Dwelling 

Analysis of Petition 

The City is in receipt of a request from CityBuild on behalf of the developer Paddock Manor Limited, LDHC 
to rezone approximately 3.12 acres of land located on the east side of S. Paddock Street between Willard 
Street on the north and Cottage Street from R-2 Two Family and Terrace Family Dwelling District to R-3 
Multiple Family Dwelling District. According to the completed Zoning Map Amendment application, the 
applicant proposes to redevelop the West Manor Apartments into a multi-faceted 85 unit senior housing 
development. 

The applicant's proposed use is determined to be a Multiple Family Apartment Use, and this type of use is 
permissible in an R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District. The proposed project will also include Assisted 
Living and Nursing Home Uses at the site, both which require Special Exception Permits to allow these 
uses within the R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District. The two necessary Special Exception Permits were 
granted by the Planning Commission approving at its June 6, 2018 meeting. If the zoning map amendment 
is approved by City Council, the applicant will be required to complete full site plan review per Section 
6.204 prior to receiving any building permits. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial, & Green Land Use Category. 
This land use category is designed to provide flexibility to encourage the positive reuse of vacant or 
underutilized properties in strategic locations around the City. This request complies with these Master 
Plan goals for this land use category including allowing flexibility to attract creative entrepreneurs to 
redevelop vacant sites. 

1 



The developer is proposing constructing a full service multi-faceted senior development that provides a 
wide range of housing services. The applicant has described that the previous building was too small to 
financially be able to provide a full-range senior housing facility because the previous development only 
had 45 unit. It is this rationale that the applicant is using to support their request to allow for a larger 
building with more units. 

A public hearing was held at the June 6, 2018 Planning Commission with no one speaking for or against the 
proposal during the hearing. Per the review requirements found in Sec. 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Planning Commission has found compliance with these review requirements and recommends that 
the applicant's rezoning request be approved for West Manor Apartments redevelopment project. 

2 



ZMA 18-03 - Zoning Map Amendment 
Address: 245 S. Paddock Street 
Parcel: 64-14-33-136-001 

Resolution 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for 245 S. Paddock 
Street, identified as parcel ( 64-14-33-136-001) from City Build on behalf of Paddock Manor Limited, 
and the applicant's petition is for the rezoning of the aforementioned parcel and the redevelopment 
of West Manor Senior Apartment site; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to 
compliance with the City's Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision found 
within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements 
set forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 
aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of 
Pontiac Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, 
Public Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On June 6, 2018, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 
245 S Paddock Street, approving the change from the current R-2 Two Family and Terrace Family 
Dwelling District zoning to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 18-03) request for 245 S. 
Paddock Street, also known as PIN 64-14-33-136-001, to amend the current zoning from R-2 Two 
Family and Terrace Dwelling District zoning to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District. 

3 



23 5 S. Paddock Street 

4 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council 

Arthur F. Mullen, AICP - Interim City Planner 
Through the Office of Deputy Mayor - Jane Bais-Disessa 

Neighborhood Revitalization Plan - for the study area including portions of 
Districts 1 and 2 
Historic District Commission Recommendation 

June 13, 2018 

Analysis of Resolution 

The following resolution has been reviewed by the Pontiac Historic District Commission at its June 12, 
2018 meeting regarding a Michigan State Senate Bill (SB 469) and companion State House Bill (HB 5178) 
that would reestablish the Michigan State Historic Tax Credits. The commission unanimously approved 
recommending that the Pontiac City Council pass this resolution and forward it the State of Michigan 
Legislative leadership and to the governor. 

In 2011, Governor Synder eliminated the existing Michigan State Historic Tax Credit that had been 
established in 1999. This action was due to state cost cutting efforts. The Michigan State Historic Tax 
Credit is available as a five percent (5%) increase to the Federal Historic Tax Credit for income producing 
properties listed on the National Register of Historic Places. This allows commercial property owners to 
be able to take advantage of a combined twenty-five percent {25%) historic tax credit for the 
rehabilitation of historic buildings. Owner-occupied residential properties listed on the National Register 
are not eligible for the Federal historic credits, but they would be eligible to take a full twenty-five percent 
(25%) state credit on eligible rehabilitation expenses. 

The City of Pontiac has actively supported historic preservation activities within the City since before the 
City adopted its historic preservation ordinance in 1983. In the same year, it designated Fairgrove Historic 
District as the City's first historic district. Since that time, an additional five historic districts and six 
historic sites have been designated as local landmarks by the City. 

The Michigan Historic Preservation Network has led a coalition of interested groups in advocating for the 
reestablishment of the State Tax Credit. These historic credits are great economic redevelopment tools in 

1 



older communities where more historic resources are located. The credits allow developers to build 
equity while closing the "financing gap" that often happens with the rehabilitation of historic buildings. 

In Pontiac, the state historic credit would be a powerful redevelopment tool as it would provide financial 
incentives for property owners within the local historic districts to rehabilitate their homes to the 
Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation. Currently, there are no incentives available for 
owner-occupied homes, and many of the city's residents struggle to be able to afford rehabilitation to the 
Federal standards. This credit would be significant tool for the Historic District Commission to be able to 
encourage property owners to properly repair their homes to the standards. 

This resolution would publicly demonstrate Pontiac's support for the reestablishment of the State Historic 
Tax Credits and for local historic preservation efforts statewide. 

2 



Historic District Commission - Michigan State Historic Tax Credit Resolution of Support 
Senate Bill 469 /House Bill 5178 

Resolution 

Whereas, The historic buildings, neighborhoods, and places in Michigan's villages, towns, and cities 
distinguish each community and provide character and a sense of place that contributes significantly to 
the quality of life and economic benefits enjoyed in and by each community; and 

Whereas, The City of Pontiac passed its Local Historic District Commission ordinance in 1983 to protect 
significant local historic resources and continues to value and protect its built heritage; and 

Whereas, The preservation and rehabilitation of historic buildings, places, and neighborhoods contributes 
to the beauty, character, and economic vitality of Michigan communities, and 

Whereas, The labor intensive nature of historic rehabilitation creates jobs and investment in local 
businesses and has been proven to generate more economic activity than equivalent investments in new 
construction; and 

Whereas, Michigan has measured the economic impacts of the former Michigan Historic Tax Credit 
programs between their enactment in 1999 and their elimination in 2011 and seen significant positive 
direct impacts on the revitalization of neighborhoods and communities, the preservation and creation of 
affordable and market-rate housing, the creation of skilled local jobs, and the subsequent private 
investment in areas surrounding tax-credit-driven revitalization projects, and 

Whereas, Each $1.00 of credit issued leverages $11.37 in direct economic impact, such that the former 
Michigan Historic Tax Credit programs during their twelve-year history leveraged $251 million in Federal 
historic tax credits that otherwise would not have returned to Michigan, spurred $1.46 billion in direct 
rehabilitation activity, and created 36,000 jobs; and 

Whereas, The passage of the State Historic Tax Credit would be available for historic single family property 
owners within the City of Pontiac and would enable property owners to be able to expend additional 
funds on preservation projects within our community; and 

Whereas, The Michigan Legislature is presently considering Senate Bill 469 and House Bill 5178 that would 
reinstate an up-to-25 percent investment tax credit for owners of historic residential and commercial 
properties who substantially rehabilitate their properties; 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the Pontiac City Council endorses and supports both Senate Bill 469 
and House Bill 5178 and calls upon the Michigan Legislature to pass this important legislation and 
Governor Synder to sign it, in order to stimulate appropriate development and redevelopment and protect 
the historic character and quality of life of our communities; and 

Be It Further Resolved, That a copy of this Resolution be forwarded to the Michigan Historic Preservation 
Network. 

3 


	20180615163710412
	20180615163829644
	publicsafetyjune2018.pdf
	Public Safety Subcommittee minutes and reports for the June 2018 meeting are enclosed
	Minutes 6-8-2018 Special Meeting
	Minutes 6-12-2018
	May MONTHLY REPORT for Pontiac (2)
	Waterford Regional May MONTHLY REPORT for Pontiac




